
We create innovative solutions 
BeyondHumanVision

MOBOTIX AG
Annual Report
October 01, 2022 to September 30, 2023



MOBOTIX Innovations
YouTube Video

2

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9g4VqK5Mae4&t=10s


Letter to the Shareholders	 4

MOBOTIX at a Glance	 7

Highlights 2022/23	 8

MOBOTIX Worldwide Successful	 10

New Products and Solutions	 14

Supervisory Board Report	 20

Our Mission	 25

Consolidated Management Report	 26

Basic Information On The Group	 26

Financial Report	 32

Net Assets, Financial Position and Results of Operations	 33

Risk Management	 40

Opportunities and Outlook	 43

Consolidated Financial Statement 	 46

Balance Sheet	 46

Income Statement	 48

Cash Flow Statement	 49

Statement of Changes in Equity	 50

Notes To The Consolidated Financial  
Statements For The Financial Year 2021/22	 52

Auditor’s Report	 64

Glossary	 68

Contact And Disclaimer	 70

3

MOBOTIX AG Annual Report, October 01, 2022 to September 30, 2023



Letter to the Shareholders

4 Christian Cabirol (CTO) • Philippos Antoniou (CSMO) • Klaus Kiener (CFO)  •  Thomas Lausten (CEO)



Dear MOBOTIX Shareholders,

Our business year 2022/2023 improved in several areas from 

previous business year 2021/2022. We have managed to 

strengthen our strategic focus on quality, cyber security, market 

certifications and solutions for specific vertical markets that will 

continue to be our key drivers for improved results.

We need, however, to secure the continued transformation of 

our company in world and market conditions dominated by con-

stant changes, which also offer many new opportunities for 

MOBOTIX.

Business and product innovations for our focused vertical mar-

kets are more important than ever, and and during the year, we 

analyzed the markets further with our customers and colleagues 

to fully understand how we can utilize the opportunities in the 

video market by understanding the needs and preferences 

together with our partners around the world.

Our business strategy is especially targeting healthcare, indus-

try and utility markets based on recent product launches in co-

operation with technology partners and on the new “ONE” plat-

form which will be launched in Spring 2024. Feedback from 

recent partner conferences in DACH and EMEA in February 2024 

has been positive and customer feedback will be further integ-

rated into our R&D strategies.

MOBOTIX increased sales with 13% compared to previous busi-

ness year and closed at EUR 63.2 million with an order backlog 

of EUR 0.5 million, nearly in line with our published guidance of 

EUR 64.0 to 66.0 million from August 2023.

Main growth derives from both increased sales of video surveil-

lance cameras and increased software sales in video manage-

ment systems and analytics. VAXTOR Group acquired in 2022 

has contributed with software sales above expected level. EBIT 

has improved from EUR -7.5 million to EUR -3.9 million also due 

to an improved material and staff cost ratios. 

Provisions of EUR 3.3 million have been established due to out-

standing payments from some long-term partners. Due to these 

provisions, the EBIT is different from the published guidance of 

EUR -0.8 to 0.2 million from August 2023.

Increased investments will be implemented to secure further 

growth and expansion of VAXTOR. Several combined projects, 

for example license plate recognition at gas stations, complement 

both MOBOTIX and VAXTOR solution offerings and maximize the 

synergies of our both companies.  

Also, other product areas contributed to the increase in vertical 

solutions sales e.g. MOVE range with more than EUR 6.0 million 

in revenues and P7 sales that have increased by 30% to EUR 13.5 

million compared to prior year.

We have during the past business year investigated how we can 

better understand the needs of our customers e.g. in healthcare, 

industry, energy and other vertical markets, and we will utilize 

these learnings to focus even more and to develop our compe-

titive advantages especially in these selected vertical markets.

We have experienced that several of our long-term partners have 

encountered challenges with their payments to us which have 

especially been impacted by increased interest rates. We decided 

as such to establish provisions of EUR 3.3 million while we are 

actively negotiating the overdue account receivables with our 

partners particularly in the Middle East and have agreed to pay-

ment plans which are followed up by our teams on a weekly 

basis.

During business year 2022/2023 two new Management Board 

members were appointed. 

Dr. Christian Cabirol was appointed Chief Technology Officer, 

CTO as of 1 April 2023 and has been with MOBOTIX since 2016. 

Dr. Cabirol holds a PhD in engineering and has been leading the 

launch of our new “ONE” camera platform that we will bring to 

the market in spring of 2024.
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Mr. Philippos Antoniou was appointed as Chief Sales and Mar-

keting Officer, CSMO as of 1 May 2023 with responsibility for all 

sales and marketing. Mr. Antoniou has been with MOBOTIX since 

2012 and has managed sales with our partners and customers 

in most business regions.

Our new leadership program was also initiated during business 

year 2022/2023 with focus on development of leadership skills 

and competences of our Managers in Germany and international.

Managers have participated, and further training modules are 

planned for leaders at different levels to secure they have the 

best competences to lead the MOBOTIX colleagues in the next 

steps of our evolution. 

Our company is based on our German values with respect for 

all cultures, and we are proud of the 16 countries that our col-

leagues represent. MOBOTIX has already 15 colleagues who have 

been with the company for more than 20 years, 128 colleagues 

with more than 10 years at MOBOTIX while we have also welco-

med new talents that have joined us recently in Langmeil and 

all over the world. The teamwork between departments and 

colleagues is inspiring and will be a key driver in our future deve-

lopment.

Focus in BY 2023/24 is to streamline costs and investments in 

new customer platforms to optimize customer experience e.g. 

online configuration and ordering. We also continue to optimize 

the company and will further adapt to focus on especially core 

markets in DACH and Europe while partnerships with distributors 

and key account partners will be made even stronger in the US 

and APAC markets.

We will continue our mission of creating innovative solutions 

Beyond Human Vision with strengthening our good market repu-

tation and position as a trustworthy manufacturer of high-qua-

lity video solution technology Made in Germany. 

We thank each and every one of our talented and dedicated 

colleagues in Langmeil, Germany and around the world for the 

hard work and their commitment.

Thank you to all our Shareholders for your trust, and we look 

forward to welcoming you again to Langmeil on the 10th of May 

for our Annual Shareholder Meeting.

With my very best regards,

Thomas Lausten

Thomas Lausten • CEO of MOBOTIX AG
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Financial year (October 01 – September 30) 2022/23 2021/22 Delta %

Central Key Figures TEUR TEUR

Total operating output 65,572 60,257 8.82

Revenue 63,167 56,037 12.72

Of which outside Germany (%) 73 71

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) 334 -3871 n.a.

EBITDA margin (EBITDA as percentage of revenue) 0,5 6,4

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) -3884 -7520 n.a.

EBIT margin (EBIT as percentage of revenue) -5,9 12,5

Profit before tax -5432 -7626 n.a.

Return on revenue (%) before tax -8.6 -11.3

After-tax profit for the year -5,409 -6313 n.a.

Cash flow from operating activities 2724 -4427 n.a.

Balance Sheet Figures 30.09.2023 30.09.2022

Equity 18,186 23,743 -23.40

Equity ratio (equity as percentage of total assets) 22.3 27.0

Total assets 81,490 87,962 -7.36

Non-current assets 30,687 30,068 2.06

Current assets 45,369 53,531 -15.25

Of which cash and cash equivalents 944 2271 -58.43

Employees

Number of employees (reporting date) (1) 345 369

Average number of employees (FTE) 325 341 -4,.9

Revenue per employee (2) 194 164 18.51

EBITDA per employee (2) 1 -11 n.a.

EBIT per employee (2) -12 -22 n.a.

Key per-share figures EUR EUR

Dividend - - 

DVFA/SG (Deutsche Gesellschaft für Betriebswirtschaft/Schmalenbach-
Gesellschaft) cash flow (3) 0.21 -0.20

1)	 Including four members of the Management Board; headcount
2)	 Based on the average number of employees
3)	 Based on an average of 13.187.660 shares
4)	 n.a. not applicable
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Subscribe MOBOTIX 
newsletter for free

November 2022 
MOBOTIX video technology 100 
percent NDAA-compliant

April 2023
New CTO of MOBOTIX AG to start 
on April 01, 2023

March 2023
i-PRO, MOBOTIX and Konica 
Minolta strengthen strategic 
cooperation
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Highlights 2022/23

October 2022 
GIT readers award MOBOTIX 
M16 VdS thermal camera for fire 
protection

January 2023
Konica Minolta relies on 
MOBOTIX to expand its global 
video solution services

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9g4VqK5Mae4&t=10s


May 2023
Reappointment of the MOBOTIX 
CEO and CFO and expansion of 
the Management Board to 
include a Chief Sales and 
Marketing Officer (CSMO)

June 2023
Milestone for business 
intelligence solutions: The new 
MOBOTIX SYNC software 
consolidates data and makes 
information usable beyond the 
video image

September 2023
Impressive solution for reducing 
false alarms - MOBOTIX wins the 
GIT SECURITY AWARD 2024 in 
the fire protection category

9

July 2023
MOBOTIX 7 Series cameras 
successfully pass U.S. NEMA 4X 
tests for ruggedness and 
reliability



Wegmüller Attikon is the oldest wood and cardboard packaging 

manufacturer in Switzerland. The company manufactures special 

packaging, for example, for trade fairs and medical technology. 

15,000 cubic meters of sustainably managed wood are processed 

yearly for individual export packaging alone.

Wood and cardboard are stored and processed in various ways 

everywhere on the plant site. This poses a potential fire hazard. 

The batteries of multiple machines, which give off heat and can 

overheat, also contribute to this. Monitoring technology must 

reliably monitor the extensive outdoor area and large warehouses. 

In addition, Wegmüller Attikon operates three wood chip silos, 

which, in addition to the fire hazard, have an excessively dusty 

environment. Forklifts and trucks move around the site. The aim 

is to prevent vehicles with hot engines, body parts, and exhaust 

systems from triggering false alarms during fire protection 

monitoring.

The MOBOTIX Thermal TR cameras (thermal radiometry) cover 

large areas and halls. In the wood chip silos, the MOBOTIX 

cameras were equipped with SITRAC air spray housings due to 

the enormously high dust content. With the Thermal Validation 

App developed in-house by MOBOTIX, hot mobile heat sources 

can be filtered out for alarming. This prevents alarms being 

triggered by forklifts and trucks and significantly reduces the false 

alarm rate.

Security in the plant is established around the clock and on the 

entire site. The system can be accessed at any time. The customer 

and MOBOTIX partner also have a MOBOTIX specialist via the 

Professional Service and thus additional security since the fire 

protection system is checked several times. This provides safety 

and the necessary freedom for carefree and successful work with 

the highest precision, just as customers expect from Wegmüller.

Detect fires as early as possible, reliably minimize false alarms
Wegmüller Attikon, Switzerland

Success Story 
Download 
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TSK, founded in 1986 and based in Spain, is a global company 

for sustainable development through innovative technologies. 

TSK offers solutions for various industries such as electrical inf-

rastructures, industrial plants, conventional and renewable power 

generation plants, gas-to-power, water treatment plants, or sto-

rage and handling facilities for raw materials. The Gijón-based 

company employs more than 1,000 people and carries out pro-

jects in more than 50 countries with a turnover of approximately 

one billion euros. 

SIXPERIENCE from TSK is a virtual reality-based system for indus-

trial operations and remote maintenance. The MOBOTIX cameras 

were used as a connecting element for interaction. While the 

MOBOTIX video systems show the live image, the virtual TSK 

technology, which is connected to the Internet, ensures that the 

viewer has the impression that he is moving through the scenery 

himself. He can even touch things (such as switches) and interact 

with them, which creates countless possibilities within virtual 

reality. For example, the SIXPERIENCE user can also control a 

robot, from which the MOBOTIX cameras provide a view of the 

real world and the robot‘s surroundings. Thus, The user can carry 

out maintenance and operations safely from a distance while 

having the impression of being on-site, thanks to the virtual link. 

Juan Luis Carús Candás, Innovation Manager at TSK Electrónica 

y Electricidad, summarizes: “We chose MOBOTIX because the 

camera is easy to customize and configure. In addition, the soft-

ware and the HTTP API offer us many possibilities. Another impor-

tant factor is the durability and resistance of the MOBOTIX came-

ras, which guarantee the best results even in the harshest envi-

ronments.“ 

Virtual World Enables Real Action 
TSK, Spain

Success Story 
Download 
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The Zoilo Ríos Group from the northern Spanish region of Aragon was 

founded in 1927. Today, the company is an integrated energy and 

ancillary services provider with more than 150 employees and ope-

rates 19 gas stations, among others. The company has achieved sus-

tainable growth with the continuous expansion of new facilities and 

innovative products and services in various business areas.

Incidents repeatedly occur at gas stations, and identifying vehicle 

license plates plays a key role in solving them. Zoilo Ríos needed an 

effective solution to reliably recognize and store the license plates of 

customers filling up at gas stations. The analog monitoring systems 

used to date provided inadequate and inaccurate images, especially 

in poor lighting conditions, and only allowed patchy identification.

Thanks to the recommendation of a well-known parking garage ope-

rator, Grupo Zoilo Ríos was already using MOBOTIX cameras to moni-

tor some of its truck parking spaces. Following this positive experience, 

MOBOTIX was selected as the central supplier for expanding the secu-

rity system.

MOBOTIX Ultra-LowLight modules deliver clear images even in low 

light and unfavorable light. Since the video system is also integrated 

into the open MOBOTIX 7 platform, using the VAXTOR Make Model 

Color App provides a complete all-around package. Thus, the vehicle‘s 

license plate, type, make, and color are recognized.

In the meantime, 50 cameras have already been installed at the Group’s 

various gas stations. A few cameras can cover a large area and provide 

reliable data around the clock, even at dusk or in low-light conditions. 

“We appreciate the great flexibility of the camera’s built-in apps and 

the excellent image quality of the camera recordings. We can highly 

recommend this MOBOTIX solution to our colleagues in the industry,” 

adds Rios Torre.

Best Overview Even in Poor Light
Zoilo Ríos, Spain

Success Story 
Download 
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The Park Vossenberg nursing home in Kaatsheuvel (Netherlands) 

has 89 attractive apartments for elderly people. The nursing home 

aims to provide all residents with the highest possible level of 

freedom in a safe environment. A second important reason for 

installing intelligent home automation is to reduce the workload 

of care staff.

Zorggroep Elde Maasduinen commissioned AMR ICT to set up 

intelligent building automation in three virtual residential zones 

where residents move around. The first zone monitors the safety 

of all residents within the residential complex, while the second 

zone monitors the outside area surrounding the complex. The 

third zone is for residents who have unrestricted freedom of move-

ment. “Based on all requirements, AMR ICT recommended 

high-resolution MOBOTIX cameras as intelligent sensors,” says 

Giovanni van Keulen, Team Coach of ICT Services at Maasduinen 

Care Group. “AMR ICT integrated the cameras into the nurse call 

system (VOS) with wandering detection and into our fire alarm 

system using IQ Messenger and Kadex. In addition, thanks to the 

voice-controlled connection, we can use Kompy Nano SafetyTra-

cer devices as walkie-talkies.”

“One important selection requirement was that our nursing staff 

have to be able to easily operate and manage the home automa-

tion themselves,” says Kolmans. “They don’t want to be depen-

dent on IT colleagues or suppliers during evenings, nights or 

weekends. We discovered that activating or temporarily switching 

off the intelligent sensor is really a matter of Plug & Play. I have 

seen very few projects that could be carried out so easily and 

with so little hassle. The MOBOTIX cameras also have certified 

cybersecurity and comply with GDPR regulations, which is very 

important for us as a healthcare organization.

MOBOTIX Technology Supports Independent Living 
Park Vossenberg, Netherlands

Success Story 
Download 
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MOBOTIX - Innovations for intelligent video technology

MOBOTIX: AI-based video technology solutions
MOBOTIX offers its customers real added value with innovative 

packages of solutions that leverage AI-supported video 

technology. This is our solution promise. Cybersecurity and data 

protection are as crucial as durability, adaptability, and reliabi-

lity. It‘s essential that the technology is not only cutting-edge 

but also that MOBOTIX customers can be confident they have 

selected a solution of the highest quality. Every intelligent 

MOBOTIX solution is designed with a focus on enhancing pro-

tection, security, and optimizing processes. 

MOBOTIX has evolved from a camera manufacturer to a provider 

of intelligent video technology solutions. The company has not 

only upheld its core values of quality, reliability, durability, cyber-

security, and data protection but also has significantly enhanced 

these attributes. MOBOTIX offers the ideal solution for every 

unique challenge, encompassing both optical and thermal ima-

ging technologies, complete with the perfect software, AI-sup-

ported apps, and the optimal video management system.

Pioneering: The Certified MOBOTIX Thermal 
Validation App significantly reduces false alarms
MOBOTIX significantly reduced false alarms by using the Thermal 

Validation App to detect and filter out non-critical heat sources 

captured in camera images that do not represent a fire risk. For 

example, vehicles driving through a monitored area have repea-

tedly triggered false alarms with their hot engines, interrupting 

the work process and causing unnecessary loss of time and costs. 

MOBOTIX has succeeded in detecting such non-critical heat sour-

ces using the app and avoiding false alarms. 

In addition, significantly fewer false alarms result in far greater 

sensitivity when an alarm is triggered. The function requires the 

use of MOBOTIX TR technology, which measures the thermal radi-

ation in the entire image area and assigns a temperature value to 

each pixel. This new MOBOTIX solution is ground-breaking and 

has impressed in a very short space of time. In September 2023, 

the readers of the trade journal GIT Sicherheit awarded the 

MOBOTIX Thermal Validation App 1st place in the GIT Security 

Award 2024 in the Fire Protection category.

Product Information 
Download

The Game Changer: 
MOBOTIX Thermal Validation App
Reduce the Number of 
False Alarms  
in Thermal Applications
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With SYNC, MOBOTIX sets a milestone for busi-
ness intelligence solutions
The newly developed MOBOTIX SYNC data management software 

gathers and organizes data from intelligent apps installed on 

MOBOTIX 7 cameras and the MOBOTIX MOVE ALPR camera. The 

insights and outcomes derived enhance the safety of companies 

and organizations by protecting individuals, facilities, and systems. 

They also automate and improve processes, saving time and 

money.

Data management creates added value for numerous 
industries beyond traditional video surveillance
MOBOTIX SYNC can be used profitably in many areas, for 

example in industry, production and logistics, traffic  

monitoring, hotels and parking lot management. The software 

is capable of synchronizing data across a network of several 

hundred cameras and multiple locations, offering insights  

previously unattainable. Additionally, it allows for the data to 

be visualized in a range of display formats. The clear graphs, 

dashboards and KPIs (key performance indicators) are  

immediately visible, trends can be identified and the informa-

tion can be interpreted in real time. The data also triggers 

events and alarms that can be output via various interfaces 

(e.g. REST API).

MOBOTIX Solution Packs - targeted, individual 
solutions for adaptation 
The establishment of MOBOTIX as a solution provider of intelligent 

video technology has spurred the development of entire solution 

packages for certain industries, niches or special areas. Within a 

very short space of time, applications have been created in a wide 

variety of areas that can also be adapted to be of interest to other 

sectors.

Thanks to MQTT and MODBUS/TCP support, we have further  

optimized the integration of MOBOTIX 7 IoT video systems into  

automated processes, including existing SCADA systems. The crucial 

point for a successful application solution is the seamless integration 

of video-based data into the customer‘s existing  

infrastructure. When specialized IoT devices interact with each other, 

data is enriched and processed according to rules, processes can 

be automated and new potential for increasing efficiency and  

productivity can be realized.

Combine purposefully, benefit together
With the wide range of cameras, lenses, sensors and the extensive 

range of intelligent apps, solution packages can be put together in 

such a way that these requests can be precisely mapped and can 

help many companies in these special areas.

Product Information 
Download
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In the food & beverage industry, for example, there are very speci-

fic requirements for maintaining cooling chains. Energy suppliers 

who must monitor remote overhead power lines, on the other hand, 

have completely different requirements for video technology. 

MOBOTIX solution packages are now available for e-mobility, pet-

rol stations and car washes, waste management, recycling plants 

and battery production, reprocessing and storage. MOBOTIX also 

offers solution packages for the transportation and mobility, retail 

and wholesale, logistics and freight sectors. MOBOTIX has also 

developed a highly customized solution package for increased yield 

and greater security in foundries. MOBOTIX‘s high level of thermal 

expertise has also supported a highly customized solution package 

for butchers and slaughterhouses. This package can also be easily 

adapted to the production of fresh products. The MOBOTIX solution 

package for safe skiing is a real niche product.

MOBOTIX - Leading thermal expertise for 
safety, efficiency and optimization
With its constantly growing solution expertise, MOBOTIX is incre-

asingly able to play its leading role in thermal video technology. 

Making temperatures - whether hot or cold - visible and using 

intelligent apps to enable an efficient event to be triggered in the 

event of critical temperatures can not only save lives but is there-

fore a milestone in fire protection. In the best-case scenario, no 

fire or damage occurs in the first place. The knowledge that there 

is always an optimum temperature for processes involving heat 

or cold opens the possibility of optimizing these processes using 

thermal video technology. The right video technology can secure 

and protect as well as optimize processes to increase yields.

SOLUTIONS
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Intelligent MOBOTIX solutions that impress

Certifications - Cooperation - Awards 
In the 2022/23 financial year, MOBOTIX further developed its 

intelligent video technology systems and stepped-up global sales. 

MOBOTIX was also awarded important certifications that demons-

trate the key quality features of MOBOTIX solutions. Several 

cooperation agreements with major market players have been 

concluded and intensified.  And finally, awards from market 

experts have confirmed the success of MOBOTIX.

Certifications of MOBOTIX video technology

MOBOTIX is NDAA compliant
The confirmation that all MOBOTIX products and systems meet 

the requirements of the US National Defense Authorization Act 

(NDAA) and are 100 percent NDAA-compliant has an impact far 

beyond the US market. The NDAA says - particularly in Section 

889 - certain companies and components of Chinese origin that 

may not be used for telecommunications equipment (including 

security products) or services for marketing to US federal agen-

cies, for example, to protect against espionage. Around the world, 

NDAA compliance is seen as a strong sign of high cyber security 

and data protection standards. 

MOBOTIX 7 Series cameras successfully pass US 
NEMA 4X tests for ruggedness and reliability 
The cameras in the MOBOTIX 7 series have successfully passed 

the US-NEMA 4X tests. This certifies their suitability for use in 

harsh environments. The US National Electrical Manufacturers 

Association (NEMA) 4X rating is one of the highest ratings for out-

door devices. The MOBOTIX 7 Series cameras meet all the crite-

ria of the standard and are designed to withstand dust, water 

spray, snow, ice and extreme temperatures without compromising 

performance or reliability. This proves once again that MOBOTIX 

cameras can cope with even the harshest environmental condi-

tions. 

 

The MOBOTIX 7 Series cameras have been extensively tested for 

shock, vibration, and corrosion resistance. All tests are carried 

out according to strict industry standards to ensure that the came-

ras meet the highest quality requirements for indoor and outdoor 

applications. Successfully passing these tests is further proof of 

the high quality, Made in Germany.

MOBOTIX receives its fifth fire protection certifica-
tion with Applus 
The MOBOTIX M73 thermal camera for early fire detection com-

plies with the fire protection systems regulation (RIPCI) that has 

been in force in Spain since 2017. The MOBOTIX thermal camera 

was subjected to extensive tests and technically evaluated in an 

external report by APPLUS LABORATORIES, Bellaterra/Barcelona. 

The suitability for use in fire protection systems was certified in 

accordance with Article 5.3 of Royal Decree 513/2017 (Reglamento 

de Instalaciones de Protección Contra Incendios (RIPCI)). The 

Spanish certification is already the fifth certification for MOBOTIX 

fire protection expertise. It joins certificates from other interna-

tional institutes, such as the German VdS (Verband Schadenver-

hütung GmbH), the French National Center for Prevention and 

Protection (CNPP), the Austrian Federal Fire Brigade Association 

(PBST) and compliance with the European EU standard EN 54-10.
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Cooperation of MOBOTIX AG

Konica Minolta relies on MOBOTIX to expand its 
global video solution services. 
Konica Minolta combines MOBOTIX cameras with AI apps for its 

corporate focus on “securing social security“. Konica Minolta has 

defined ensuring social security as one of its business areas. 

Through its business activities, the company aims to contribute 

to solving challenges such as the growing risk of disasters due 

to climate change or the declining labor force due to aging socie-

ties. To ensure people‘s safety and improve industry productivity, 

Konica Minolta believes it is becoming increasingly necessary to 

solve social problems through digital transformation (DX). AI-

assisted real-time detection and assessment on site using Konica 

Minolta‘s IoT imaging platform FORXAI offers excellent solutions. 

Konica Minolta relies on the robust, high-performance MOBOTIX 

video technology, which is geared towards decentralized video 

technology and maximum cyber security. Konica Minolta‘s global 

sales companies offer video solution services based on MOBOTIX 

products and services to digitize customers‘ workflows. 

Awards

Environmental commitment makes MOBOTIX a 
“Donnersberg Climate Hero“
Sustainability is a particularly important concern for MOBOTIX 

AG - and the expansion of solar technology at the headquarters 

in Langmeil and the strengthening of e-mobility are proof of 

MOBOTIX AG‘s sustainable approach. A third of the electricity 

required is generated by MOBOTIX in Langmeil itself. In addition, 

the proportion of e-cars in the vehicle fleet is steadily increasing. 

In the 2022/23 financial year, twelve charging points with 11 kW 

each for e-vehicles were installed and put into operation at the 

company headquarters in Langmeil. Together with the use of 

solar energy from the large 600 kWp photovoltaic system, which 

was put into operation on the roof of the production hall at the 

end of 2022, the company is taking the next steps on its sustai-

nable path and with important ESG key figures. MOBOTIX was 

honored as a “Donnersberg Climate Hero“. With this award, the 

climate protection management of the Donnersberg district regu-

larly rewards people, companies or associations that are com-

mitted to a better climate in the district.
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Winner of GIT Security Award for MOBOTIX  
Thermal Validation App
The MOBOTIX solution for reducing false alarms has impressed 

the readers of the trade journal GIT Sicherheit. In September 

2023, the MOBOTIX Thermal Validation app won the prestigious 

GIT SICHERHEIT AWARD 2024 in the fire protection category. While 

the thermal camera can detect emerging fires before flames deve-

lop, the software developed in-house ensures that false alarms 

are reduced to a minimum. MOBOTIX is the first video system 

manufacturer with five fire protection certificates. The certifica-

tes all come from internationally recognized institutions and 

prove that the company is a leader in fire protection and early 

fire detection..

Cybersecurity and data protection as key 
MOBOTIX quality features
Cyber security is an integral part of the MOBOTIX DNA. MOBOTIX 

video systems are subjected to regular penetration tests, for 

example by the French Center national de prévention et de pro-

tection (CNPP) and SySS GmbH, the leading institute for penet-

ration tests in Germany. All MOBOTIX products and solutions are 

integrated into the comprehensive cyber security strategy, the 

overall measures of which are bundled in the MOBOTIX Cactus 

Concept. During the 2022/23 financial year, the great importance 

of the highest possible level of cyber security for IT infrastructu-

res was once again very clear. 

 

 

The frequency of cyberattacks, targeting either sabotage or espi-

onage, was notably high. MOBOTIX remains committed to uncom-

promising cybersecurity measures. The decentralized architecture 

of MOBOTIX video systems also ensures the best possible security, 

as all image processing processes, such as the pixelation of peo-

ple, take place directly on the camera and no unpixellated data 

is transmitted. In general, MOBOTIX focuses on data protection 

and GDPR-compliant applications. Apps on the MOBOTIX 7 plat-

form can even dynamically pixelate images by recognizing peo-

ple and automatically anonymizing them. This can be important 

when monitoring sensitive areas, public places, or schools. Ther-

mal applications also offer the best opportunities for GDPR-com-

pliant perimeter and property protection, as people can be seen 

in the thermal image but cannot be identified. The decentralized 

architecture also does not require a permanent stream to a ser-

ver or control center, as image data is only transmitted when an 

event occurs. And this dialogue is always encrypted. 
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Ladies and Gentlemen,  
Dear Shareholders,

The development of the net assets, financial position and results 

of operations in the 2022/23 financial year again did not fully 

meet the expectations of the Executive Board and Supervisory 

Board with regard to business development. The macroecono-

mic environment worldwide was characterized by Russia‘s ongo-

ing war of aggression against Ukraine, the associated rise in 

inflation and the global rise in interest rates.

The planned revenue of EUR 64.0 to 66.0 million was not achie-

ved with the revenue of EUR 63.2 million generated. Overall, 

MOBOTIX increased its revenue by 13% in the 2022/23 financial 

year compared to the previous year. 

EBIT improved from EUR -7.5 million to EUR -3.9 million due to 

an improved cost of materials and personnel expenses ratio. 

Additional value adjustments on customer receivables amoun-

ting to EUR 3.3 million were recognized due to outstanding pay-

ments from some long-term partners.  

Due to these value adjustments, EBIT deviates from the forecast 

of EUR -0.8 to 0.2 million published in August 2023.

The consolidated net loss for the year improved by EUR 0.9 mil-

lion to EUR -5.4 million (previous year: EUR -6.3 million).

The main growth resulted from both increased sales of video 

surveillance cameras and increased software sales in the areas 

of video management systems and analytics. The VAXTOR Group, 

which was acquired in 2022, contributed to this result with soft-

ware sales that were above the expected level.

The business strategy targets the healthcare, industrial and uti-

lities markets in particular, based on recent product launches 

in collaboration with technology partners and on the new “ONE“ 

platform, which will be launched in spring 2024. Feedback from 

recent partner conferences in DACH and EMEA in February 2024 

was positive and customer feedback will continue to be incor-

porated into R&D strategies.

The focus in BY 2023/24 will be on streamlining costs and inves-

ting in new customer platforms to optimize the customer expe-

rience, e.g. online configuration and ordering, etc. The organi-

zation has been optimized and will be further adapted to focus 

primarily on the core markets in DACH and Europe, while part-

nerships with distributors and key accounts in the US and APAC 

markets will be strengthened.

The MOBOTIX Group‘s financial position was strained throughout 

the 2022/23 financial year. 

As at December 31, 2023, a further loan was taken over from a 

bank of Konica Minolta, Inc., Tokyo, Japan, and a further inter-

company loan was granted. The reported balance of intercom-

pany loans thus amounts to EUR 34.2 million as at March 21, 

2024. The financing from the banks assumed by the majority 

shareholder Konica Minolta, Inc., Tokyo, Japan, on February 24, 

2023 was extended to June 30, 2025 on February 28, 2024 and 

a qualified letter of subordination was issued. On February 28, 

2024, the majority shareholder also agreed to provide further 

support in the form of loans in the amount of EUR 7.0 million 

until June 30, 2025; of this amount, EUR 2.5 million is to be drawn 

down by March 31, 2024.

With an equity ratio of 22,3% and equity of EUR 18.2 million, the 

company still has a satisfactory equity base.
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Methods of consulting, auditing and control 
The Management Board fulfilled its duty to provide information. 

At its meetings, it provided the Supervisory Board with regular, 

comprehensive and timely information on all topics relevant to 

the Group, such as the company‘s situation, technology strategy, 

product development, business performance, the financial situ-

ation, the personnel situation, current and new investment pro-

jects and all decisions and business transactions of importance 

to the company.

Deviations in the course of business from the plans, which the 

Management Board always explained to us promptly and in 

detail, were dealt with intensively by the Supervisory Board.

In preparation for the Supervisory Board meetings, we regularly 

received detailed written reports from the Management Board. 

This meant that we always had sufficient opportunity to critically 

examine the reports and proposed resolutions of the Manage-

ment Board and to make our own suggestions before adopting 

our resolutions after careful examination and consultation. The 

Management Board was available to answer our questions at 

the Supervisory Board meetings.

The Management Board also kept the Supervisory Board infor-

med of the current business situation and significant financial 

and internal company developments outside of meetings 

through regular reports. In the case of transactions requiring 

approval, the Supervisory Board gave its approval to the mea-

sures proposed by the Management Board after thorough exa-

mination and consultation. In doing so, we critically assessed 

the information provided by the Management Board, scrutinized 

it in detail and checked its plausibility.

Throughout the year, the Supervisory Board ensured that the 

company was managed properly. There were no conflicts of inte-

rest on the part of Supervisory Board or Management Board 

members.

The Management Board also kept the Chairman of the Supervi-

sory Board informed of all important developments and upco-

ming decisions in regular discussions between meetings. In the 

reporting year, the Supervisory Board did not make use of the 

option to inspect company documents and writings or to appoint 

special experts for certain tasks (Section 111 (2) AktG). The Super-

visory Board has not formed any committees to date, as this 

would not have contributed to an increase in efficiency due to 

the size and structure of the company. In all matters, the entire 

Supervisory Board has always dealt with the issues and decisi-

ons at hand.

Focus of the Supervisory Board‘s deliberations
A total of 14 Supervisory Board meetings were held in the 2022/23 

financial year. If necessary, the Supervisory Board met without 

the presence of the Executive Board. In principle, all three mem-

bers of the Supervisory Board were present at the meetings.

At the first ordinary Supervisory Board meeting in October 2022, 

the agenda included the sales analysis and KPIs for the 2022/23 

financial year, the preliminary income statement for the 2022/23 

financial year, an update on the product roadmap, the investor 

relations strategy in light of the current share price performance 

and the presentation of the customer survey by the Management 

Board.

At the second ordinary Supervisory Board meeting in February 

2023, the agenda items for the upcoming Annual General Meeting 

were discussed and resolved. Resolutions were also passed to 

confirm the repayment plan, to confirm the new business allo-

cation plan from April 1, 2023 and to appoint Christian Cabirol 

as the new CTO. The sales and earnings performance was then 

discussed and the status of the ongoing audit was explained.

At the third ordinary Supervisory Board meeting to approve the 

financial statements in April 2023, the Executive Board presented 

the financial report for the past 2021/22 financial year. The 

annual and consolidated financial statements as at September 

30, 2022 were presented and analyzed in detail in the presence 
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of the auditor who confirmed this report. All questions were 

answered fully and conclusively by the auditor. At this meeting, 

we passed the resolution to adopt the annual financial state-

ments and approve the consolidated financial statements. The 

invitation and agenda for the Annual General Meeting in May 

2023 and the proposal for the appropriation of profits were  

resolved. 

At this meeting, the Supervisory Board also discussed the sales 

and earnings performance as well as the product roadmap for 

the first half of the 2022/23 financial year.

At an extraordinary Supervisory Board meeting in May 2023, the 

mid-term plan for the financial years 2023/24 to 2025/26 was 

presented to the members of the Supervisory Board and dis-

cussed in detail.

At an extraordinary Supervisory Board meeting in July 2023, the 

sales and earnings performance of the past quarter was analyzed 

and discussed in detail. In addition, the fourth quarter was the 

focus of discussions with regard to turnover, costs and measures 

to boost turnover. Staff turnover was also discussed.

At the fourth ordinary Supervisory Board meeting in July 2023, 

the Management Board presented the sales performance in the 

second financial quarter and provided an outlook for the sales 

and earnings performance in the second half of the year. In addi-

tion, the Management Board presented the status of the product 

roadmap. The Supervisory Board was also updated on the ongo-

ing legal proceedings.

Another extraordinary Supervisory Board meeting was held in 

September 2023. The Executive Board analyzed and discussed 

in detail with the Supervisory Board an adjustment to the 

medium-term planning based on the current business and sales 

situation. Growth drivers, external factors such as rising inflation 

and higher interest rates as well as a stronger focus on the core 

markets were discussed.

Between meetings, the Supervisory Board was in regular contact 

with the Management Board, in particular with the Chairman of 

the Management Board, on important issues and held repeated 

discussions. In the months in which no Supervisory Board mee-

tings were held, a total of seven “Jours fixes“ meetings were held 

in which the Management Board and Supervisory Board dis-

cussed current issues and developments together.

Topics that were generally discussed regularly throughout the 

year were company development, sales and marketing activities, 

the status of product development and product quality as well 

as technology partnerships, pending legal proceedings and the 

development of the share price.

In addition, the Supervisory Board dealt intensively with per-

sonnel, financing and liquidity planning as well as the status of 

process and structural optimizations. The development of the 

subsidiary in the USA and the US market as a whole was dis-

cussed regularly.

Audit of the AG and consolidated financial statements 2022/23
On May 26, 2023, the company‘s Annual General Meeting elected 

Ernst & Young GmbH Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Saarbrü-

cken, as the auditor and Group auditor for the financial year 

ending September 30, 2023. A declaration of independence was 

obtained from the auditor in advance, which did not lead to any 

objections.

The auditor has issued an unqualified audit opinion on the 

annual financial statements and the management report of 

MOBOTIX AG in accordance with HGB as well as the consolidated 

financial statements and the combined management report in 

accordance with HGB as at September 30, 2023. However, it refers 

to statements made by the Management Board in the notes and 

management report that, should significant delays in planned 

sales or significant delays in incoming payments occur or should 

one or more of the assumptions made in the planning prove to 

be incorrect, further support from the majority shareholder or 

other external sources of financing will be required to enable 

the parent company and thus the Group to continue as a going 

concern. This indicates the existence of a material uncertainty 

that may cast significant doubt on the company‘s ability to con-

tinue as a going concern.
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The report of MOBOTIX AG on relationships with affiliated com-

panies pursuant to Section 312 AktG (dependent company 

report) for the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 

2023 submitted by the Management Board was also audited by 

the auditor and issued with an unqualified audit opinion.

The financial statement documents and the Management Board‘s 

proposal for the appropriation of profits as well as the auditor‘s 

reports were submitted to the Supervisory Board for review in 

good time. The Supervisory Board examined and discussed the 

annual financial statements, the consolidated financial state-

ments, the combined management report, the dependent 

company report in accordance with Section 312 AktG, the 

Management Board‘s proposal for the appropriation of profits 

and the auditor‘s report in detail. The auditor took part in these 

discussions, was available to answer questions and reported on 

the key findings of the audit.

After completing its own review, the Supervisory Board concur-

red with the auditor‘s findings and determined that there were 

no objections, including to the declaration by the Management 

Board at the end of the dependent company report:

“The Management Board declares that, in the legal transactions 

and measures listed in the report on relationships with affiliated 

companies, the company received appropriate consideration 

for each legal transaction according to the circumstances known 

to us at the time the legal transactions were carried out or the 

measures were taken and was not disadvantaged by the mea-

sures taken.

No measures have been omitted at the instigation of or in the 

interests of the controlling company or one of its affiliated com-

panies.

Winnweiler-Langmeil, March 21, 2024 

The Executive Board“

At its meeting on March 25, 2024, the Supervisory Board appro-

ved the annual financial statements and the consolidated finan-

cial statements of MOBOTIX AG prepared by the Management 

Board. The annual financial statements are thus adopted.

Appropriation of earnings
We discussed in detail with the Management Board a proposal 

for the appropriation of earnings that does not provide for a 

dividend and approved this proposal in view of the company‘s 

current financial situation.

Committees
The Supervisory Board of MOBOTIX AG currently has no committees, 

as there has been no corresponding need to date. There is therefore 

no need for a report on the work of the committees.

The following changes were made to the Supervi-
sory Board in the reporting period: 
With effect from October 1, 2023, Mr. Olaf Lorenz has succeeded 

Mr. Olaf Jonas, who is leaving the Board at his own request. Mr. 

Lorenz, resident in Hamburg, Germany, has worked for the 

Konica Minolta Group for many years - most recently as Head of 

Marketing of the International Marketing Division of Konica Mino-

lta Business Solutions Europe GmbH in Langenhagen, Germany. 

Since October 1, 2023, the Supervisory Board has been compo-

sed of Toshiya Eguchi (Chairman of the Supervisory Board), Olaf 

Lorenz (Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board) and Koji 

Ozeki.

The following personnel decisions were made on 
the Management Board in the reporting period.  
Appointment of two new members of the Board of Directors:

Mr. Christian Cabirol replaces Mr. Hartmut Sprave in his role as 

Chief Technology Officer (CTO). He was appointed as Chief 

Technology Officer of MOBOTIX AG by the Supervisory Board at 

its meeting on December 21, 2022 until March 31, 2025. He is 

responsible for Mechanical and Electronic Design, Software Deve-

lopment and Strategic Innovation.

Effective May 1, 2023, Philippos Antoniou will become the fourth 

member of the MOBOTIX AG Management Board in the position 

of Chief Sales and Marketing Officer (CSMO). In his new role, he 

will drive the technological and sales development of MOBOTIX 

based on the MOBOTIX DNA, take customer feedback into 

account and further increase awareness of MOBOTIX solutions 

and products.
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Reappointment of two members of the Board of Directors:

At its meeting on March 1, 2023, the Supervisory Board reap-

pointed Mr. Klaus Kiener as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of 

MOBOTIX AG until March 31, 2025. He will continue to be res-

ponsible for Finance, Corporate Planning/Controlling, Investor 

Relations, Legal/Compliance/Data Protection, Organization, IT 

Services and Logistics/Customs. The “Quality Management“ 

department will in future be assigned to the CFO.

On April 20, 2023, the Supervisory Board appointed Thomas 

Lausten as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of MOBOTIX AG for a 

further two years until June 30, 2025. The aim for the coming 

years will be to drive forward more product innovations and 

make investments that secure a stronger global presence in 

selected geographical and vertical markets.

Since May 1, 2023, the Management Board has thus consisted 

of Thomas Lausten (Chief Executive Officer), Klaus Kiener (Chief 

Financial Officer), Christian Cabirol (Chief Technology Officer) 

and Philippos Antoniou (Chief Sales and Marketing Officer).

The Supervisory Board would like to thank all of the Group‘s 

employees worldwide and the members of the Executive Board 

for their achievements in the 2022/23 financial year and their 

great personal commitment, as well as the employee represen-

tatives for their trusting cooperation.

We are convinced that the MOBOTIX Group is strategically well 

positioned for the future in order to return to growth in the 

2023/24 financial year and beyond. The cooperation with Konica 

Minolta offers good growth opportunities in the medium term, 

both in terms of technological order development and sales.

We wish the management and employees every success for the 

challenges of the 2023/24 financial year and would particularly 

like to thank the customers, partners and shareholders of 

MOBOTIX AG for their benevolent trust in these challenging times.

Winnweiler-Langmeil, March 25, 2024 

For the Supervisory Board

Toshiya Eguchi 
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MOBOTIX Investors

Our Mission
We create innovative solutions BeyondHumanVision.

MOBOTIX aims to be the innovation leader. Our business model is focused 

on growing, recurring revenues – worldwide. 

MOBOTIX takes its social and environmental responsibility seriously.

https://www.mobotix.com/de/unternehmen/investors


Basic Information On The Group

Technology and Products
MOBOTIX AG, Winnweiler-Langmeil (hereinafter referred to as 

“MOBOTIX“ or Company), offers high-resolution, network-based 

video control systems. The systems consist of hardware, with a 

focus on high-performance cameras, as well as increasingly soft-

ware, such as application software (also called applications or 

apps), that fulfill customer-specific functions. The solutions are 

distributed worldwide by distributors and qualified resellers. 

Founded in 1999, the Company has more than 20 years of market 

experience in decentralized IP-based video surveillance solutions.

The system architecture developed by MOBOTIX offers two 

options for managing data either decentrally in the camera or 

on a central server, depending on the customer‘s requirements. 

The processing of recorded data begins right in the camera and 

thus directly on the border between the real world and the 

MOBOTIX system. Such an architecture is called “edge 

technology.“ 

The decentralized structure of MOBOTIX‘s systems relieves both 

the network and the central video management system, enables 

higher frame rates and reduces the data storage requirement 

when recording high-resolution video sequences. This makes it 

cost-effective overall. MOBOTIX video security systems are sui-

table for highly diverse applications, from small systems with a 

few web cameras to large-scale property surveillance with hund-

reds of cameras and central control stations. MOBOTIX systems 

are used for remote maintenance and automation in airports, 

train stations, universities, logistics companies and in industrial 

companies. 

In recent financial years, MOBOTIX has transformed from merely 

being a product provider to a solution provider with integrated 

software. The combination of hardware and software to form a 

complete solution is due on the one hand to customer requests. 

On the other hand, digital possibilities open up a growing scope 

for using MOBOTIX technologies in a meaningful manner for cus-

tomers. 

MOBOTIX provides extensive accessories and powerful software 

solutions for all camera lines. The main features of MOBOTIX 

technologies are a large-scale absence of moving parts and a 

decentralized approach. The lack of moving parts avoids heat  

 

generation in the housings and is associated with low suscepti-

bility to interference and longevity. The decentralized approach 

makes it possible for MOBOTIX to protect its offers in the best 

possible way regarding the security of the obtained data from 

access by unauthorized persons. Both high quality and data secu-

rity are two key differentiators of MOBOTIX in the competition 

environment. 

For MOBOTIX, IT security is a central component of every 

technology. Therefore, continuous certifications are very impor-

tant. MOBOTIX‘s solutions are based on the combination of 

decentralized IoT technology developed in-house and video 

management software. Both the MOBOTIX 7 platform and the Mx6 

security cameras have been tested and certified once again by 

SySS GmbH in the past financial year. SySS GmbH is one of the 

leading providers of penetration tests in Germany and is indepen-

dent of manufacturers. MOBOTIX has been working regularly with 

SySS since 2017 as part of its cyber security campaign “Cactus 

Concept.“ The SySS tests expose hardware and software compo-

nents to simulated hacker attacks. As a result, the best possible 

cyber security of MOBOTIX products and solutions was once again 

certified in June 2021. Despite the decentralized approach, the 

industry standards ONVIF, H.264 and H.265 were met.

There are also partnerships with other external IT security testing 

companies—with the French company CNPP (Centre national de 

prévention et de protection), Paris, France, and White Hat IT Secu-

rity Kft., Budapest, Hungary. In 2019, MOBOTIX was the first Euro-

pean manufacturer to receive the French product certification 

“CNPP Certified“ for video security systems with the highest level 

of protection against cyber attacks. A partnership with another 

well-known testing institute is in the process of conceptual pre-

paration, and further partnerships are also planned. What are 

called “white hacker“ institutes have been and will be commissi-

oned to specifically attack MOBOTIX Software. This complements 

our efforts to provide solutions that meet the ever-increasing glo-

bal IT security needs. The Company‘s explicit focus on cyber secu-

rity is a clear differentiator for MOBOTIX in the competitive envi-

ronment.
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Focus on Six Vertical Markets
MOBOTIX expects long-term market growth for video systems 

in six economic sectors:  the public sector and administration, 

industrial companies, mining of raw materials including oil/gas, 

utilities and waste removal, energy, manufacturing, education, 

retail and healthcare. 

MOBOTIX specifically addresses these vertical markets to place 

its solutions here and will continue to do so in the 2023/24 finan-

cial year. MOBOTIX offers hardware (cameras, access control) as 

well as software (intelligent apps and video analysis) as well as 

professional and convenient camera management and control 

(MOBOTIX HUB, MxManagementCenter, MOBOTIX CLOUD), to 

be able to offer tailor-made offers in these markets and thus to 

exploit the long-term growth opportunities that arise.

A part of this approach is what are called solution packages for 

clearly definable user groups, such as supermarkets or vaccina-

tion centers. MOBOTIX offers package solutions that link different 

aspects of user interest. For example, in addition to classic safety 

monitoring, fire protection, monitoring of cold chains and docu-

mentation requirements of MOBOTIX solution packages can be 

covered for companies in the food processing sector. 

Focus on Recurring Business  
In the past, MOBOTIX generated revenue almost exclusively 

through the sale of hardware and cameras. The Company can 

structurally improve its business model to include diverse pos-

sibilities, by increasing what are called recurring sales in the 

future. These have the advantage of being less cyclical and more 

predictable. For this reason, MOBOTIX has been pursuing its 

strategy for some time to achieve more recurring sales in the 

long-term. Recurring sales include rental and leasing constella-

tions for hardware and software, subscription models, services 

such as (remote) maintenance, or regular software upgrades, 

user training and consumption of tools and materials used alt-

hough the consumption of tools and materials is practically irre-

levant for MOBOTIX. In contrast to selling a product or service 

as a one-time event, MOBOTIX seeks a long-term connection to 

the end customer. 

On the one hand, this opens up opportunities to better under-

stand customers and their markets, i.e. to recognize customer 

needs and wishes earlier and more accurately. On the other hand, 

recurring revenues reduce MOBOTIX‘s cyclical dependence  

 

because they improve predictability. This approach can have a 

positive impact on the Company both in the operating business 

and on the capital market. On the capital market, investors often 

demand a higher risk premium during increasing economic sen-

sitivity. Increasing the proportion of recurring sales gives 

MOBOTIX the opportunity to reduce risk premiums in the long-

term and thus to provide added value for shareholders and 

employees.

Product Launches in The Past Financial Year
The MOBOTIX 7 platform was expanded with various accessories 

in the optics/modules sector during the fiscal year 2022/23. These 

primarily aim to deliver optimized results in challenging lighting 

conditions. Additionally, the optics/module portfolio was sup-

plemented with additional form factors to enhance covert ins-

tallation.

Furthermore, the firmware of the MOBOTIX 7 platform received 

additional updates to facilitate the integration of the camera 

series into external systems. The communication protocols were 

expanded to include the MQTT and Modbus standards.

Integration and strategic partnerships remain a focal point for 

the MOBOTIX 7 platform in this fiscal year as well. The MOBOTIX 

“Certified App“ offering from strategic partners was enhanced 

with further updates in the Optical Character Recognition (OCR) 

area. The proprietary apps were expanded with the Barcode 

Reader and various thermal apps. Particularly notable is the 

Thermal Validation App, which allows filtering of invalid thermal 

objects such as vehicles with hot engines from the camera‘s 

alarms in the field of “early fire detection.“

In the area of software, MOBOTIX CLOUD, MOBOTIX HUB and the 

ManagementCenter (MxMC) have been significantly extended 

to include various functions of research. For example, other 

MOBOTIX 7 apps and events in the field of Smart Data Search of 

the MxMC as well as a post-video motion search were published. 

Additional apps and events have also been released as a plugin 

for MOBOTIX HUB to optimize the search for events for the ope-

rator and save time and effort. 

The publication of thermal apps, thermal extensions of the soft-

ware portfolio, and the achievement of further thermal certifi-

cations (including EN54 and CNPP) illustrate the focus of 

MOBOTIX AG on advancing its thermal solution. 
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In addition to its decentralized camera program, MOBOTIX also 

offers the classically centrally managed MOVE series. The suc-

cessful product launch of the new MOBOTIX MOVE 2MP camera 

with vehicle license plate recognition and pre-installed VAXTOR 

ALPR MMC Analytics license demonstrated the strong and close 

cooperation between MOBOTIX and VAXTOR. 

The MOBOTIX MOVE PTZ Line was replaced by a very powerful 

next generation in the spring of 2023, supporting video resolu-

tions from 2MP up to 4K resolution. In addition to higher image 

resolutions and frame rates, this new PTZ Speed Dome series 

features integrated license-free DNN-based video analysis func-

tions, including face and license plate recognition, enabling 

efficient deployment in many vertical markets as part of tailored 

solution packages, also in combination with the classic MOBOTIX 

IoT products.

In the summer of 2023, the first MOBOTIX MOVE multisensor 

camera was introduced to the market. It combines four individual 

5MP cameras with varifocal lenses in one housing with only one 

network cable connection and one IP address. This allows for 

cost-effective setup and operation, offering, among other things, 

a 360° panoramic view and versatile deployment both stand-

alone and as part of high-performance end-to-end solution 

packages due to the already integrated and license-free DNN-

based video analysis functions. 

To meet the increasing demands for IT security, this multisensor 

camera features a certified HW TPM chipset (Trusted Platform 

Module) for secure storage of SSL keys and thereby meets the 

requirements of the FIPS140-2 IT Security Standard. 

All MOBOTIX MOVE products allow 3rd party integration through 

the industry standard ONVIF S/G/T and M and are also NDAA 

compliant. 

These new MOBOTIX MOVE products also come equipped with 

the innovative EverClear coating from the factory, enabling sig-

nificantly better image reproduction in darkness in conjunction 

with IR illumination and additionally providing a rain and dirt-

repellent effect for domes and camera front glasses (self-cleaning 

effect). 

Furthermore, all MOBOTIX MOVE products (cameras, NVR, CMS 

software, and apps) have been continuously equipped with new 

features and improved convenience through FW/SW updates.

The MOBOTIX MOVE camera, announced in the spring of 2023 

based on the strengthened technology partnership between 

MOBOTIX, Konica Minolta, and i-PRO, was developed as part of 

an ODM cooperation between MOBOTIX and i-PRO and has been 

officially marketed since October 2023. This is a 20MP (4x5MP) 

multisensor camera with integrated PTZ Speed Dome and 21x 

optical motor zoom and integrated DNN-based video motion 

detection with automatic object tracking.

Cooperation with Konica Minolta 
MOBOTIX maintains partnership relationships with several com-

panies. MOBOTIX is strategically cooperating with the majority 

shareholder Konica Minolta Inc, Chiyoda, Japan. This collaboration 

extends to joint development and production, among other things. 

Both companies have intensified their collaboration in the Konica 

Minolta FORXAI platform. Konica Minolta combines intelligent sen-

sors with learning based on algorithms (artificial intelligence) and 

an IoT platform. By integrating FORXAI technology into its solutions, 

MOBOTIX is further expanding its “edge competence.“ 

Outlook
In the fiscal year 2022/23, MOBOTIX worked intensively on new 

products and solutions. Several of these will be launched after the 

end of the fiscal year. In November 2023, another solution package 

was released, combining the MOBOTIX c71 Indoor camera with 

analysis software from Kepler Vision to detect falls and movements 

of individuals, particularly in hospitals and care facilities. 

In addition, MOBOTIX is already working on the release of further 

MOVE models and a new camera platform called “MOBOTIX ONE,“ 

which is set to be introduced to the market in spring 2024. From 

the board‘s perspective, this will support the transformation pro-

cess from being a product provider to a solution provider, including 

further software monetization.  
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Structure of The MOBOTIX Group
The MOBOTIX Group consists of MOBOTIX AG, Winnweiler- 

Langmeil, Germany; MOBOTIX CORP, New York, USA; MOBOTIX 

LIMITED, Nottingham, UK; MOBOTIX SINGAPORE PTE. LTD., Sin-

gapore; and MOBOTIX AUSTRALIA PTY LTD, Sydney, Australia. 

Since May 1, 2022, the companies VAXTOR TECHNOLOGIES, S.L., 

Madrid, Spain; VAXTOR ASIA PTE. LTD, Singapore are also 100% 

owned by the MOBOTIX Group. As an inactive company, MOBOTIX 

LIMITED, Nottingham, is not included in the consolidated finan-

cial statements. VAXTOR System CORP was liquidated as of 

December 31, 2022.

Manufacturing and development of MOBOTIX products – along 

with the coordination of worldwide sales and distribution of 

MOBOTIX products – take place exclusively in Winnweiler- 

Langmeil, Germany. 

The VAXTOR companies are managed from Madrid, Spain. The 

VAXTOR companies are purely software companies. The software 

is developed at the Madrid site in Spain.  

The subsidiary MOBOTIX CORP, which is included in the conso-

lidated financial statements, is a distribution company for the 

American market. The Managing Directors of MOBOTIX CORP 

are Thomas Lausten (CEO) and Klaus Kiener (CFO).

MOBOTIX SINGAPORE PTE. LTD., Singapore and MOBOTIX AUS-

TRALIA PTY LTD, Sydney, are purely service companies for the 

respective local market without any intention to generate sales.

Sales
MOBOTIX products in Germany are sold through certified part-

ners, security and IT installers and electronics wholesalers. 

The primary sales model for MOBOTIX products internationally 

is through distributors with downstream qualified system inte-

grators and resellers. The distributors are assisted in most regi-

ons by local Business Development Managers and Technical 

Project Engineers, who are directly employed by the MOBOTIX 

Group.

Since April 2022, the distribution of MOBOTIX products in the 

USA has also been carried out through Konica Minolta Business 

Solutions U.S.A., Inc. This means that MOBOTIX AG now sells its 

products directly to Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A., 

Inc., which acts as the main distributor. Konica Minolta is thus 

able to supply both its own customers and customers of MOBOTIX 

CORP. Customers from America within the MOBOTIX Group con-

tinue to order directly from MOBOTIX CORP, but Konica Minolta 

handles the entire process. Therefore, MOBOTIX CORP no longer 

maintains its own inventory, as all logistics are handled by Konica 

Minolta. In return, Konica Minolta receives a handling fee of two 

percent for this service.

In addition, there are distribution agreements in place with indi-

vidual regional companies of the Konica Minolta Group and other 

MOBOTIX partners. 

The VAXTOR products are mainly distributed via system integ-

rators or directly to the end customer. Global distribution is 

managed from Madrid, Spain.

The MOBOTIX Group‘s export ratio in the 2022/23 financial year 

was 73% (previous year: 71%). 
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Research and Development 
As of September 30, 2023, the MOBOTIX Group employed 76 peo-

ple (by headcount) in product development and product manage-

ment.  

The MOBOTIX Group research and development costs totaling €7.8 

million were incurred in the 2022/23 financial year. An amount of 

€3.9 million (50% of the total R&D costs) was capitalized among 

the internally generated intangible assets. Depreciation and amor-

tization on capitalized development costs amounted to €1.7 mil-

lion. 

As in previous years, its activities focused on the creation of new 

hardware and software products as well as on the optimization of 

product functionality. Most development work is performed in-

house. To a small extent, outsourcing of development activities 

only takes place in the areas of camera and lens design, tool design 

and board layout. 

In terms of research and development, MOBOTIX continued its 

intensive collaboration with Konica Minolta in the fiscal year 

2022/23. The focus of the cooperation was on further expanding 

the image processing algorithms based on deep learning, general 

image processing in the camera, and the creation of a new joint 

camera platform. This joint platform is intended to further advance 

cooperation in the field of image analysis and integration into 

Konica Minolta‘s FORXAI technology in the future, to continue suc-

cessfully leveraging synergies between the two companies.
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Wirtschaftsbericht

Gesamtwirtschaftliche und branchenbezogene 
Rahmenbedingungen
MOBOTIX ist im Markt für Video-Sicherheitssysteme tätig. Der 

Markt für Video-Sicherheitssysteme umfasst analoge Video-

Sicherheitssysteme und Netzwerk-Kamerasysteme sowie Video-

Management-Software und Zubehör. Das für die MOBOTIX rele-

vante Marktsegment ist das Marktsegment der videobasierten 

Sicherheitssysteme im Allgemeinen und das Segment der Netz-

werkkamerasysteme im Besonderen. 

Das Marktforschungsunternehmen Novaira Insights geht in sei-

ner Marktstudie vom Juni 2023 davon aus, dass die Umsätze im 

Markt für videobasierte Sicherheitssysteme weltweit ohne China 

von 2022 bis 2027 um jährlich durchschnittlich ca. 9,3% wachsen 

werden, die Umsätze im Segment für Netzwerkkameras gar um 

durchschnittlich 11,4%. Die Prognosen für das Segment für Netz-

werkkameras erwarten mit durchschnittlich 9,9% pro Jahr von 

2022 bis 2027 das größte Wachstum in der EMEA-Region, gefolgt 

von Americas mit 13,1% und Asien (ohne China) mit 10,2%.

Als wesentliche Trends im Markt für videobasierte Sicherheits-

systeme benennt die Studie neben dem vermehrten Einsatz von 

Video Analytics im Allgemeinen eine beschleunigte Entwicklung 

und Verwendung von künstlicher Intelligenz, einen weiterhin 

hohen Bedarf an Cybersicherheit sowie eine hohe Bedeutung 

von Deep Learning zur Verarbeitung immer größerer Datenmen-

gen. Für das Marktsegment Analytics prognostiziert Novaira 

Insights eine durchschnittliche jährliche Wachstumsrate von 

2022 bis 2027 von 11,4%, wobei Deep Learning als einer von 

mehreren Technologieansätzen für Analytics als klarer Wachs-

tumstreiber identifiziert wird (49,8%).

Geschäftsverlauf

Welcome to Business Intelligence!
Collect Data. Synchronize Information. Increase Gains.
The MOBOTIX SYNC data management software expands the potential of video technology. Collect and synchronize 
data that goes far beyond the video image. Gain insights and create added value like never before with faster decisions, 
improved actions and cost savings.

Your one-stop solution!

•	 Capture and save video and metadata

•	 Create reports and dashboards

•	 Visualize and analyze relationships 

•	 Flexible and scalable

•	 Connect to third-party systems 

The Intelligent Data Center
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Macroeconomic and Sector-Specific Conditions
MOBOTIX operates in the market for video security systems. The 

market for video security systems comprises analog video secu-

rity systems and network camera systems in addition to video 

management software and accessories. The relevant market 

segment for MOBOTIX is video-based security systems in gene-

ral and network camera systems in particular. 

A market survey from June 2023 by the market research company 

Novaira Insights concludes that the total revenue generated by 

the video-based security system market worldwide excluding 

China is set to grow by an annual average of around 9.4% bet-

ween 2022 and 2027, and by an average of 11.4% for the network 

camera segment. With an average of 9.9% per year from 2022 to 

2027, the network camera segment is expected to achieve the 

highest growth in the EMEA region, followed by the Americas 

with 13.1% and Asia (excluding China) with 10.2%.

In addition to the increased use of video analytics in general, 

the study identifies the accelerated development and use of 

artificial intelligence, the continued high demand for cyber secu-

rity and the great importance of deep learning for processing 

ever-increasing amounts of data as being major trends in the 

market for video-based security systems. For the analytics mar-

ket segment, Novaira Insights predicts an average annual growth 

rate of 11.4% from 2022 to 2027, with deep learning being iden-

tified as one of several analytics technology approaches as a 

clear growth driver (49.8%).

 
Business Development
In the 2022/23 financial year, the MOBOTIX Group had a decline in 

sales by €7.2million (12.8%) to €63.2 million compared to the supply 

chain problems and the effects of the war in Ukraine.

Revenues from contract development for Konica Minolta remained 

nearly unchanged at €1.6 million (previous year: € 1.6 million), reve-

nues from component sales to contract manufacturers decreased to 

€0.5 million  (previous year: €0.9 million ), and revenues from the sale 

of video security systems and software increased by €7.5 million  

(14.0%) to €61.1 million. The increase in revenue, coupled with redu-

ced costs due to cost-saving measures, led to a reduction in the 

Group‘s annual loss and a corresponding improvement in key per-

formance indicators.    

EBIT (earnings before interest and taxes) in the amount of -€3.9 mil-

lion for the financial year is €3.6 million higher than the previous year 

(previous year: €-7.5 million).

The consolidated annual net loss has worsened by €0.9 million to 

-€5.4 million (previous year: -€6.3 million). 

Non-financial performance indicators are currently of minor impor-

tance for understanding the business development and the situation 

of the MOBOTIX Group; in view of the future requirements of manage-

ment reporting in the context of ESG reporting, the Management 

Board is currently in the preparatory phase of collecting and evalu-

ating relevant non-financial data.
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Net Assets, Financial Position and Results of Operations of the MOBOTIX Group

Results of Operations
The 2022/23 financial year saw MOBOTIX Group sales increased 

by €7.2 million (12.8%), from €56.0 million in the previous year 

to €63.2 million. 

The sales revenue includes revenue from component sales to 

contract manufacturers in the amount of €0.5 million (previous 

year: €0.9 million). Revenue from contract development of €1.6 

million was almost unchanged at €1.6 million compared to the 

previous year because of the intensification of collaboration with 

Konica Minolta under the FORXAI partnership program. Revenue 

from the sale of video security systems and software increased 

by 14.0% to €61.1 million (previous year: €53.6 million).

The VAXTOR subgroup, which was first fully consolidated for an 

entire fiscal year in the fiscal year 2022/2023, contributed signi-

ficantly to the increase in revenue with external sales revenue 

of €4.5 million, representing a share of 7.1% of the total revenue.

The export ratio (excluding component sales) was 74.3% in the 

financial year 2022/23 (previous year: 71.3%). The revenue from 

the sale of video security systems and software in Germany incre-

ased from €15.4 million in the 2021/22 financial year to €15.6 

million. The rest of Europe (excluding Germany) amounted to 

€26.0 million (previous year: €19.5 million). Sales in the rest of 

the world increased from €18.7 million in the previous year to 

€19.4 million in the reporting year.

In exercising the right to choose specified by Section 248(2) 

German Commercial Code (HGB), own development costs of €3.9 

million (previous year: €3.1 million) were capitalized and repor-

ted accordingly on the income statement under “Other own work 

capitalized“ with effect on net income. 

The total operating output (sales revenue, increase or decrease 

in the inventory of finished goods and work in progress, other 

own work capitalized) decreased by 8.8%, from €60.3 million in 

the previous year to €65.6 million in the 2022/23 financial year. 

This is primarily attributable to the increase in sales revenue 

and capitalized self-performance.

Other operating income increased by €0.5 million to €1.4 million.

 

The material cost ratio (material expenses excluding material 

expenses for component sales, adjusted for inventory changes, 

relative to revenue from the sale of video security systems and 

software) improved to 47.4% in fiscal year 2022/23 compared to 

49.4% in the previous year. This improvement is due in part to 

the increased share of software revenue, as well as material cost 

savings.

The decrease in the personnel cost ratio (personnel expenses 

relative to total performance excluding component sales) to 

39.0% in fiscal year 2022/23, compared to 43.5% in the previous 

year, is primarily attributable to the increase in revenue. Per-

sonnel expenses decreased by €0.4 million (1.70%) compared 

to the previous year, mainly due to the decreased average num-

ber of employees in fiscal year 2022/23.

At €4.2 million, depreciation and amortization increased in the 

2022/23 financial year (previous year: €3.6 million) by €0.6 mil-

lion. This is mainly due to the increase in the depreciation of 

own capitalized development costs.

The other operating expenses in the amount of €13.3 million in 

the 2022/23 financial year (previous year: €10.7 million) increa-

sed by €2.6 million (23.7%) compared to the previous year. The 

surge in other operating expenses is primarily due to newly for-

med individual value adjustments on receivables from sales and 

services. The individual value adjustments formed on receiva-

bles from sales and services rose by €3.3 million compared to 

the previous year.

EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amor-

tization; 0.5% of total operating output excluding component 

sales) amounted to €0.3 million (2021/22: -€3.8 million). EBIT 

(earnings before interest and taxes; -5.9% of total operating out-

put excluding component sales;) amounted to -€3.9 million 

(2021/22: -€7.5 million). The financial year 2022/23 ended with 

a consolidated annual net loss of €5.4 million (2021/22: €6.3 mil-

lion) and a return on revenue (excluding component sales) of 

-8.6% (2021/22: -11.3%).
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Net Assets

Non-current assets increased by €0.6 million (2.06%) to €30.7 

million. Investments in fixed assets of €4.9 million are offset by 

€4.3 million in write-offs and disposals of €0.1 million.

Here, the investments primarily consist of investments in intan-

gible assets amounting to €4.4 million and in tangible assets 

amounting to €0.5 million. The investments in intangible assets 

mainly involve internal development costs amounting to €3.9 

million. 

Inventories, in particular raw materials, auxiliary materials, ope-

rating materials and finished products, decreased from €30.6 

million to €25.3 million.

During the fiscal year 2022/23, trade receivables decreased by 

€0.5 million to €14.7 million compared to the beginning of the 

fiscal year. This reduction stemmed from an increase in receiva-

bles due to the higher sales volume in the fiscal year 2022/23, 

offset by newly formed individual value adjustments on recei-

vables from sales and services amounting to €3.4 million. 

The receivables from affiliated companies amount to €3.7 million, 

which is €0.6 million lower than the previous year‘s level of €4.3 

million. These receivables from affiliated companies consist of 

receivables from sales and services to companies within the 

Konica Minolta Group.

Cash in hand and bank balances and cash equivalents on Sep-

tember 30, 2023, had decreased by €1.3 million to €0.9 million 

compared to the beginning of the financial year (September 30, 

2022: €2.3 million). 

Deferred tax assets of €4.8 million (September 30, 2022: €3.6 

million) mainly result from income tax loss carryforwards of €4.7 

million (September 30, 2021: €3.2 million).

At €18.2 million (September 30, 2022: €23.7 million), equity capi-

tal has decreased compared to the previous year, mainly due to 

the consolidated annual net loss of €5.4 million. The equity ratio 

fell from 27.0% to 22.3%, with a balance sheet total that incre-

ased by €6.5 million (-7.4%) to €81.5 million (September 30, 2022: 

€88.0 million). MOBOTIX held a total of 61,658 treasury shares 

as of September 30, 2022. 44,248 treasury shares were used as 

a purchase price component for the VAXTOR Group in the 2021/22 

financial year.

The decrease in other provisions by €1.6 million to €7.6 million 

mainly results from the utilization of the provision for purchase 

price obligations amounting to the payment made in 2023 of 

€1.4 million under the earn-out agreement from the acquisition 

of the VAXTOR Group in 2022. The provision for purchase price 

obligations relates to the expected earn-out payments from the 

acquisition of the VAXTOR Group in 2022.

The decrease in liabilities to banks by €24.7 million to €14.0 mil-

lion (as of September 30, 2022: €38.7 million) mainly results from 

the replacement and repayment of short-term bank loans by 

loans from Konica Minolta Inc., Tokyo, Japan, amounting to €28.5 

million as of the reporting date.

Accounts payable decreased by €1.2 million to €6.3 million (as 

of September 30, 2022: €7.5 million).

The passive deferred taxes amounting to €3.4 million (as of Sep-

tember 30, 2022: €2.8 million) result solely from the capitalization 

of development costs.

Financial Position
The operating cash flow before changes in working capital 

amounted to €0.04 million in the fiscal year 2022/23 (previous 

year: -€4.3 million). The increase compared to the previous year 

is primarily attributable to the improved pre-tax earnings of -€5.4 

million.

The cash flow from operating activities before income taxes was 

€3.2 million in fiscal year 2022/23 (previous year: -€4.3 million), 

primarily due to the decrease in inventories coupled with an 

increase in trade payables, including liabilities to affiliated com-

panies.

The cash flow from investing activities amounted to -€6.3 million 

(previous year: -€6.7 million), primarily due to investments in 

internally generated intangible assets and the earn-out payment 

made during the fiscal year for the acquisition of the VAXTOR 

Group, amounting to €1.4 million.

The positive cash flow from financing activities of €25.7 million 

(previous year: -€10.4 million) is mainly the result of short-term 

intercompany loans taken out in the amount of €28.5 million, 

offset by interest payments of €1.4 million.
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As of September 30, 2023, the net cash position amounted to 

-€7.5 million (September 30, 2022: €29.5 million). The negative 

net cash position is covered by the short-term intercompany 

loans of €28.5 million.

The company‘s liquidity was ensured in fiscal year 2022/23. The 

available credit lines were largely utilized as of the reporting 

date. Any further credit requirements, if credit institutions are 

not available, will be provided by the majority shareholder, 

Konica Minolta, Inc. We also refer to the subsequent reporting.

Medium- and long-term liabilities decreased by €1.3 million to 

€7.1 million as of September 30, 2022. Short-term liabilities inclu-

ding short-term provisions increased from €52.9 million to €54.3 

million. This increase is partly due to a payment of €1.4 million 

under the earn-out agreement from the acquisition of the  

VAXTOR Group in fiscal year 2021/22. Additionally, the increase 

resulted from taking out short-term intercompany loans. The 

proportion of medium- and long-term liabilities to the total 

assets of the MOBOTIX Group is lower at 0.9% compared to the 

previous year. Short-term liabilities including short-term provi-

sions represent 66.6% of the total assets as of the reporting date, 

compared to 60.2% as of September 30, 2022.

Net Assets, Financial Position and Results of Operations of the MOBOTIX AG

Results of Operations
The 2022/23 financial year saw MOBOTIX AG sales increased 

slightly by 0.75%, from €53.5 million in the previous year to €53.9 

million. The sales revenue includes revenue from component 

sales to contract manufacturers in the amount of €0.5 million 

(previous year: €0.9 million). Revenue from contract development 

of €1.6 million was almost unchanged by €1.46 million compared 

to the previous year because of the intensification of collabora-

tion with Konica Minolta under the FORXAI partnership program. 

Revenue from the sale of video security systems and software 

increased by 1.9% to €51.7 million (previous year: €50.7million).

The export ratio (excluding component sales) was 70.0% in the 

financial year 2021/22 (previous year: 69.7%). The revenue from 

the sale of video security systems and software in Germany incre-

ased from €15.4 million in the 2021/22 financial year to €15.7 

million. The rest of Europe (excluding Germany) amounted to 

€22.4 million (previous year: €18,5 million). Sales in the rest of 

the world declined by 19.5%, from €16.9 million in the previous 

year to €13.6 million in the reporting year.

In accordance with the right to choose specified by Section 248(2) 

German Commercial Code (HGB), own development costs of €3.4 

million (previous year: €3.2 million) were capitalized and repor-

ted accordingly on the income statement under “Other own work 

capitalized“ with effect on net income.

 

The total operating output (sales revenue, increase or decrease 

in the inventory of finished goods and work in progress, other 

own work capitalized) decreased from €57.6 million in the pre-

vious year to €57.2 million in the 2022/23 financial year. Other 

operating income increased by €0.5 million to €1.3 million.

The material cost ratio (material expenses excluding material 

expenses for component sales, adjusted for inventory changes, 

in relation to revenues from the sale of video security systems 

and software) deteriorated to 53.4% (previous year: 51.4%) com-

pared to the previous year in the fiscal year 2022/23.

The decrease in the personnel cost ratio (personnel expenses in 

relation to total performance excluding component sales) to 

36.2% (previous year: 38.2%) in the fiscal year 2022/23 is prima-

rily attributed to the increased revenues. Personnel expenses in 

the fiscal year 2022/23 decreased by €1.1 million (5.2%) compa-

red to the previous year. The main reason for this is the lower 

average number of employees in the fiscal year 2022/23.

At €3.6 million (previous year: €3.4 million), depreciation and 

amortization increased by €0.2 million in the 2022/23 financial 

year. This is mainly due to the increase in the depreciation of 

own capitalized development costs.
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The other operating expenses amounted to €12.0 million in the 

fiscal year 2022/23 (previous year: €10.1 million), representing 

an increase of €1.9 million (19.2%) compared to the previous 

year. The increase in other operating expenses is mainly due to 

newly formed individual value adjustments for receivables from 

deliveries and services.

The EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and 

amortization; -3.5% of total performance) amounts to -€1.9 mil-

lion (2021/22: -€1.2 million). The EBIT (earnings before interest 

and taxes; -9.7% of total performance) amounts to -€5.5 million 

(2021/22: -€4.6 million). The fiscal year 2022/23 ended with a 

net loss of €5.5 million (2021/22: €3.5 million) and a revenue 

margin of -10.4% (2021/22: -6.7%).

Net Assets
Non-current assets increased by €3.2 million (7.7%) to €42.9 

million. Capital expenditures of €6.7 million in non-current assets 

were offset by depreciation and amortization of €3.6 million.

Here, the investments mainly comprise investments in financial 

assets amounting to €2.6 million and in intangible assets amoun-

ting to €3.8 million. The investments in financial assets primarily 

pertain to the loan to MOBOTIX CORP amounting to €2.6 million. 

The investments in intangible assets include internal develop-

ment costs amounting to €3.4 million. 

Inventories, in particular raw materials, auxiliary materials, ope-

rating materials and finished products, decreased to €25.2 mil-

lion from €28.8 million in previous year.

In the fiscal year 2022/23, trade receivables decreased by €0.7 

million compared to the beginning of the fiscal year, amounting 

to €8.7 million. On one hand, trade receivables increased by €2.0 

million due to the higher sales volume in the fiscal year 2022/23. 

However, newly formed individual value adjustments for trade 

receivables of €3.1 million subsequently decreased the trade 

receivables.

The receivables from affiliated companies amounting to €4.8 

million are €1.8 million lower than the previous year‘s level of 

€6.6 million. These receivables from affiliated companies concern 

trade receivables against companies within the Konica Minolta 

Group and against MOBOTIX CORP. The receivables against 

MOBOTIX CORP could be reduced by €1.8 million.

Cash in hand/bank balances and cash equivalents as of Septem-

ber 30, 2023 decreased to €0.3 million, representing a €0.7 mil-

lion decrease since the beginning of the financial year (Septem-

ber 30, 2021: €1.0 million).

Deferred tax assets of €4.7 million (September 30, 2021: €3.2 

million) result from tax loss carryforwards which were incurred 

in the 2022/23 financial year and in previous years.

At €26.8 million (September 30, 2022: €32.3 million), equity capi-

tal has decreased compared to the previous year, mainly due to 

the annual net loss of €5.5 million. The equity ratio fell from 

35.7% to 30.5%, with a balance sheet total that increased by 

€2.6 million (2.9%) to €87.9 million (September 30, 2021: €90.5 

million). MOBOTIX held a total of 61,658 treasury shares as of 

September 30, 2023. 44,248 treasury shares were used as a 

purchase price component for the VAXTOR Group in the 2021/22 

financial year.

The decrease in other provisions by €1.7 million to €7.0 million 

primarily results from the utilization of the provision for purchase 

price obligations amounting to the payment made in 2023 of 

€1.4 million under the earn-out agreement from the acquisition 

of the VAXTOR Group in 2022. The provision for purchase price 

obligations relates to the earn-out payments expected from the 

acquisition of the VAXTOR Group in 2022.

The decrease in liabilities to credit institutions by €24.7 million 

to €13.9 million (as of September 30, 2022: €38.6 million) prima-

rily results from the replacement and repayment of short-term 

bank loans with loans from Konica Minolta Inc., Tokyo, Japan, 

amounting to €28.5 million. We refer in this context to the expla-

nations under section 2.5 Overall Assessment of the Financial, 

Financial, and Earnings Situation of the MOBOTIX Group.

Trade payables increased by €1.1 million to €6.2 million compa-

red to September 30, 2022 caused by the use of payment terms 

(September 30, 2022: €7.4 million).

Deferred tax liabilities of €3.0 million (September 30, 2022: €2.5 

million) result from the capitalization of development costs.
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Financial Position
The operating cash flow before working capital changes amoun-

ted to -€3.7 million in the fiscal year 2022/23 (previous year: -€2.0 

million). The decrease compared to the previous year is mainly 

attributable to the poorer pre-tax earnings of -€6.5 million (pre-

vious year: -€4.9 million).

The cash flow from operating activities before income taxes was 

€2.9 million in the fiscal year 2022/23 (previous year: -€3.1 mil-

lion), primarily due to the decrease in inventories and the decline 

in receivables and other assets.

The cash flow from investing activities amounted to -€5.5 million 

(previous year: -€8.7 million) and is mainly attributed to invest-

ments in self-created intangible assets as well as the earn-out 

payment made during the fiscal year for the acquisition of the 

VAXTOR Group, amounting to €1.4 million.

The positive cash flow from financing activities of €25.3 million 

(previous year: -€10.4 million) primarily results from the issuance 

of short-term intercompany loans amounting to €28.5 million, 

offset by interest payments of €1.4 million.

As of September 30, 2023, the company had a negative cash 

balance of €8.1 million (September 30, 2022: -€30.6 million). The 

negative cash balance is covered by the issuance of short-term 

intercompany loans amounting to €28.5 million.

The company‘s solvency was ensured in the fiscal year 2022/23. 

The available credit lines were largely utilized as of the reporting 

date. Any further credit requirements, if credit institutions are 

not available, will be provided by the majority shareholder, 

Konica Minolta, Inc. We also refer to the subsequent reporting.

The medium- and long-term liabilities decreased by €1.9 million 

to €6.5 million compared to September 30, 2022. Short-term 

liabilities including short-term provisions increased from €47.4 

million to €51.5 million. This increase is mainly due to the pay-

ment of €1.4 million under the earn-out agreement from the 

acquisition of the VAXTOR Group in the fiscal year 2021/22. The 

proportion of medium- and long-term liabilities to the balance 

sheet total of the MOBOTIX Group decreased from 9.2% in the 

previous year to 7.5%. Short-term liabilities including short-term 

provisions accounted for 58.6% of the balance sheet total as of 

the reporting date, compared to 52.4% as of September 30, 2022.
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Overall Assessment of the MOBOTIX Group‘s Net 
Assets, Financial Position and Results of Opera-
tions
The MOBOTIX Group‘s net assets, financial position and results 

of operations in 2022/23 do not reflect the management‘s expec-

tations for the performance of the business. Business perfor-

mance was negatively impacted by the war in Ukraine. The incre-

ase in other operating expenses is mainly due to newly formed 

individual value adjustments for trade receivables amounting 

to €3.4 million.

The envisaged revenue of €64 million to €66 million could not 

be achieved since the sales revenue was at €63.2 million. Simi-

larly, the envisaged EBIT of €2.0 million to 4.0 million for the 

financial year 2022/23 could not be achieved with EBIT at -€3.9 

million.  

As of December 31, 2023, another loan amounting to €5.0 million 

was assumed from a credit institution by Konica Minolta, and 

an additional intercompany loan of €0.7 million was granted. 

The reported balance of intercompany loans thus amounts to 

€34.2 million as of March 21, 2024. The financing acquired from 

the credit institutions by the majority shareholder Konica Mino-

lta on February 24, 2023, was extended until June 30, 2025, and 

a qualified subordination declaration was provided on February 

28, 2024. Additionally, on February 28, 2024, the majority share-

holder committed to providing further support through the pro-

vision of loans amounting to €7.0 million until June 30, 2025, 

subject to certain conditions. A utilization of €2.5 million is plan-

ned until March 31, 2024.

With an equity ratio of 18.2% and equity amounting to €18.1 

million, there still exists a satisfactory equity base.

Changes to the Supervisory Board

Mr. Olaf Lorenz was appointed as a member of the Supervisory 

Board effective October 1, 2023. Conversely, Mr. Olaf Jonas con-

cluded his term and stepped down from the Supervisory Board 

as of September 30, 2023. The District Court of Kaiserslautern 

approved the request for the judicial appointment of Mr. Olaf 

Lorenz to the Supervisory Board. Mr. Lorenz, domiciled in Ham-

burg, Germany, assumes the role of General Manager of the Cor-

porate Governance Division at Konica Minolta Business Solutions 

Europe GmbH, Langenhagen, Germany, within the Konica Mino-

lta Group. Therefore, as of October 1, 2023, the composition of 

the MOBOTIX Supervisory Board comprises Toshiya Eguchi (Chair-

man of the Supervisory Board), Koji Ozeki, and Olaf Lorenz.

Changes to the Supervisory Board

Mr. Hartmut Sprave, a Graduate Physicist from Otterbach, 

Germany, ceased to serve as the Head of Technology effective 

until March 31, 2023. Mr. Dr. Christian Cabirol, a PhD in enginee-

ring from Kaiserslautern, Germany, was appointed as the Head 

of Technology effective April 1, 2023. Mr. Philippos Antoniou, a 

Bachelor of Science in Business Information Systems from Barnet, 

Great Britain, was appointed as the Head of Sales and Marketing 

effective May 1, 2023.
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Rescissory Actions and Proceedings for 
Annulment Relating to Resolutions 
Adopted by the Annual General Stock-
holders‘ Meeting for the 2015/16 Finan-
cial Year

On March 9, 2017, MOBOTIX became aware that three shareholders 

had filed for rescissory action and proceedings for annulment at 

the Local Court of Kaiserslautern in relation to resolutions adop-

ted by the Annual General Stockholders‘ Meeting on January 12, 

2017, for agenda items 2 to 6, i.e. specifically against the resolution 

to retain net profit as of September 30, 2016 (agenda item 2) and 

to reelect two Supervisory Board members (agenda item 6). 

The Board considers the lawsuits to be unfounded and has initi-

ated legal proceedings. The case was initially in the appellate stage 

before the Higher Regional Court of Zweibrücken but has since 

been returned to the Regional Court of Kaiserslautern. A decision 

announcement was scheduled for February 20, 2024, following 

an initial oral hearing held on November 14, 2023, at the Regional 

Court of Kaiserslautern, where the issues were again discussed, 

and the possibility of a settlement was explored. However, no 

agreement was reached. MOBOTIX intends to appeal against the 

decision announced on February 20, 2024, which orders MOBOTIX 

AG to pay an additional dividend of approximately €531,000. All 

other lawsuits have been dismissed.

Penalty Announced by the French Com-
petition Authority (DGCCRF)

On November 8, 2021, the French competition authority DGCCRF 

informed the Management Board that in previous years illegal 

price agreements were alleged to have been made with French 

wholesalers or distributors. The fine of €645,000 was imposed 

for a distribution practice that existed for six to seven years bet-

ween 2011/12 and 2017/18 and involved a significant share of 

the sales of MOBOTIX products in France. The practice was chan-

ged in the 2017/18 financial year and is no longer applied today.

The Management Board considers the fine and the allegations 

to be unjustified and has taken legal steps. In addition, a distri-

butor involved in the proceedings has filed potential recourse 

claims from the penalty imposed on him which, according to our 

legal review, are unfounded and which may be challenged.

Nevertheless, as a precaution for this risk, a provision of €0.70 

million was made in the previous annual financial statements, 

which was used for the payment of €0.64 million in the present 

annual financial statements. 

Legal Dispute with the General Contrac-
tor for the New Construction Project 
(Phase I) in Winnweiler-Langmeil

The contractual relationship with the general contractor for the 

new construction project (Phase I) in Winnweiler-Langmeil was 

terminated with immediate effect in 2009 before completion. The 

general contractor submitted its final invoice amounting to TEUR 

2,262 (net) in 2009. This invoice is disputed by MOBOTIX AG due 

to counterclaims for contractual penalties, defects, and under-

performance amounting to at least the same value. The legal 

proceedings are currently pending before the Higher Regional 

Court of Zweibrücken. However, the court hearing on November 

28, 2023, has not yet resulted in a resolution. In accordance with 

the risk assessment of the management, the situation has been 

reflected unchanged in the financial statements by recognizing 

an asset in the fixed assets and creating a corresponding provision 

compared to the previous year.
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Risk Report

Risk Management  
The MOBOTIX Group implemented a risk management system as 

part of the corporate management system. This is to ensure that 

risks can be identified and addressed early on (prior to considering 

risk-mitigation measures). It consists of early identification of risks, 

control and planning processes, reporting and an internal control 

system. The principles and decisions relating to the risk manage-

ment system have been documented in a risk management hand-

book. The system is enhanced and optimized on an ongoing basis. 

The purpose of the Group‘s risk management system is to identify, 

monitor and manage any risks assumed. In addition to risks to the 

Company‘s survival as a going concern, the system records activi-

ties, events and developments that could have a significant impact 

on future business performance. The risk management process 

involves identifying and managing operational opportunities and 

risks over a period of between one and three years. A longer fore-

casting period is used for strategic opportunities and risks. 

The risk to earnings is analyzed using a risk matrix. that indicates 

the probability of occurrence and the potential level of losses. If 

risks are not quantifiable, their impact is estimated in qualitative 

terms. 

The internal control system described under Item 6.2 has been set 

up to manage the business risks that are typical for the MOBOTIX 

Group and that could have a material impact on the Group‘s net 

assets, financial position and results of operations.

 
Internal Control System
The MOBOTIX Group has an extensive system of process controls. 

The introduction of the extensive system of process controls for 

the companies of the VAXTOR Group is still in the process of 

being implemented. The aim of the control system is to detect 

possible deficiencies in the Company‘s processes at different 

process levels to initiate appropriate countermeasures, and to 

ensure and continuously improve the effectiveness of the risk 

identification and analysis methods by conducting regular 

reviews. The tasks in the control system are carried out by mem-

bers of the management team and by employees working cen-

trally in the organization department who assume some of the 

duties of an internal audit function. The organization department 

reports directly to the Management Board. The role of the emplo-

yees of this department as advisors to the departmental mana-

gers enables them to monitor the internal control system‘s inte-

grity and other aspects. A major element of this task is monito-

ring the proper compliance with—and implementation of—gui-

delines. Recommendations (categorized according to their 

importance) and any needs for changes are reported directly to 

those in charge of the units under review and to the Management 

Board.

Ad-hoc audits are carried out in order to identify and investigate 

current issues promptly. If required, these result in immediate 

process changes aimed at continuously improving the quality 

of processes. Afterward, follow-up audits are conducted so that 

progress on implementing the process changes can be reviewed. 

The Management Board is notified of any discrepancies without 

delay.

The internal control system is an integral element of risk moni-

toring in the Group. It is based not only on defined control 

mechanisms for prevention and monitoring – such as automated 

and manual reconciliation processes – but also on predefined 

Probability of Occurrence 

Low < 25%

Medium 25% - 50%

High 50% - 75%

Very high > 75%

Possible Impacts (€)

Low < €0.1 million 

Medium €0.1 million – €0.2 million 

High €0.2 million – €0.7 million 

Very high > €0.7 million 
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approval processes, separation of functions and compliance with 

guidelines. Another important measure is ensuring that the 

actions of individuals are verified by a second person. By rigo-

rously applying the principles and instructions laid down in the 

risk policy, the majority of risks can be avoided or their impact 

can at least be mitigated..

Significant Risks

Market Risks
MOBOTIX products are used as video security solutions in vari-

ous sectors, such as transportation (buses, train stations, air-

ports, traffic surveillance, etc.), retail and industry as well as for 

building and perimeter protection. In past years, MOBOTIX suc-

ceeded in standing out from among many competitors through 

high-resolution and hemispheric camera technology. 

External market studies show that digital IP video security 

systems will see growth in coming years, but that average prices 

will decrease considerably. Specifically, fiercer competition is 

expected, especially in the segment of high-resolution network 

cameras, a field where MOBOTIX has so far held a strong position. 

There are also further risks resulting from political changes in 

specific regions (such as Brexit and the political situation in Tür-

kiye)—and of course because of the COVID-19 pandemic and 

global supply chain volatility. Therefore, the Management Board 

expects the market environment to be exposed to growing risk.

Procurement market risks increased significantly in the reporting 

year due to the global procurement situation for electronic com-

ponents, in particular semiconductors, processors and chips. 

The global market volatility can thus lead to changes in the avai-

lability of components. The risk of longer delivery times in this 

context is countered by the contractually guaranteed larger stock 

of inventory of components at suppliers and of finished goods. 

There are procurement bottlenecks affecting product availabi-

lity, which are the consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and 

global supply chain volatility.

Temporary unavailability of critical suppliers, for example for 

the processors, which could lead to significant production dis-

ruptions, cannot currently be ruled out due to the global pro-

curement situation of electronic components, in particular semi-

conductors, processors and chips as a result of the global COVID-

19 pandemic and global supply chain volatility. Therefore, the 

Management Board expects the procurement environment to 

be exposed to growing risk.

Overview of Overall Risk

Probability of Occurrence Possible Impact

Market Risks

Sales risks/competitive situation Very high Very high

Procurement risks Very high Very high

Financial Risks

Financial risks Medium Very high

Risk of receivables default High High

Currency and interest rate risks High High

Political and Legal Risks

Statutory and regulatory risks Medium Medium

Risks from patent disputes Medium Medium

Operational Risks

Personnel risks High Medium

Warranty risks Low Medium
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Financial Risks
Due to the Company‘s credit standing and existing credit com-

mitments, there are financial risks. Of the reported liabilities to 

banks of €14.0 million, €10.0 million have a term of up to one 

year.

As of December 31, 2023, another loan amounting to €5.0 million 

was assumed from a credit institution by Konica Minolta, and an 

additional intercompany loan of €0.7 million was granted. The 

reported balance of intercompany loans thus amounts to €34.2 

million as of March 21, 2024. The financing acquired from the 

credit institutions by the majority shareholder Konica Minolta 

on February 24, 2023, was extended until June 30, 2025, and a 

qualified subordination declaration was provided on February 

28, 2024. Additionally, on February 28, 2024, the majority share-

holder committed to providing further support through the pro-

vision of loans amounting to €7.0 million until June 30, 2025, 

subject to certain conditions. Utilization of €2.5 million is planned 

until March 31, 2024.

The current earnings and liquidity forecasts of MOBOTIX AG and 

hence the Group include liquidity inflows, which have been pre-

pared based on the best estimates of the management. Should 

significant delays in planned revenues or further significant delays 

in receipt of payments occur, or should one or more of the 

assumptions underlying the forecasts prove to be incorrect, 

further support from the majority shareholder in the form of loans 

or other external sources of financing such as a capital increase 

based on an authorized capital of €6.5 million may be required 

to enable the continuation of MOBOTIX AG and hence the Group. 

This represents a significant uncertainty related to events or cir-

cumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company‘s 

ability to continue its business activities.

Currency risks generally exist in connection with the business 

operations in the US and the purchasing requirements of 

MOBOTIX AG in US dollars. An interest rate risk is significant due 

to the use of, in particular, short-term credit lines or short-term 

money market loans. The existing medium-term borrowing was 

taken out with a fixed interest rate. Bad debt risks are to be limi-

ted in the future by the Company‘s reworked, efficient accounts 

receivable management, including dunning and collection with 

restrictive granting of payment terms, but bad debt risks cannot 

be ruled out due to the COVID-19 pandemic and global supply 

chain volatility.

Political and Legal Risks
Existing video surveillance boosts people‘s feeling of security, 

which is why it is enjoying increasing public acceptance. A growing 

number of political initiatives are emerging that are aimed at 

improving the quality of surveillance systems in public areas. If 

high-resolution systems increasingly become the norm in public 

security, MOBOTIX will be able to profit additionally from such 

development as a key manufacturer of such systems. On the other 

hand, limits will be imposed on video surveillance through various 

laws and regulations, such as the EU General Data Protection 

Regulation.

In the video security industry, there is still a risk of patent dispu-

tes. It cannot be ruled out that the MOBOTIX Group will be invol-

ved in patent infringement proceedings and that these could have 

a significant financial impact.

Operational Risks and Other Risks
Given the changes to the market and competition environment, 

the organization has a continued need for adjustment. This pre-

sents fundamental risks, which the Company counters through 

adjusting personnel resources, optimizing processes and control 

systems as well as updating the IT infrastructure (particularly 

ERP and CRM).

The production and sales of technical products entail warranty 

risks. These are reflected in the financial statements by recog-

nizing appropriate provisions. The Company has also taken out 

product liability insurance to safeguard against possible losses 

and risks.

If trends in the global financial markets and the real economy 

result in a widespread, global recession, this would naturally 

have a marked effect on the markets relevant to the MOBOTIX 

Group.

The IT risk and cyber security requirements required for the 

business model are ensured by significant investments in the IT 

infrastructure, product certifications and penetration testing.

The Management Board continues to assume that technological 

innovations and further distribution expansion are of great 

importance for the long-term success of the Group.
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Opportunity Report

MOBOTIX is active in the continuously growing video surveillance 

system market. The Company‘s growth is mainly due to an incre-

asing requirement for IT security, automation, Industry 4.0, intel-

ligent sensors based on high-performance deep learning and AI 

video analytics, as well as the Internet of Things (IoT).  

The Management Board generally assumes that technological 

market drivers, such as cloud-based installations and software 

applications in the fields of analytics, deep learning and artificial 

intelligence, will favor the decentralized technology approach 

and that MOBOTIX will, therefore, prevail despite growing com-

petitive pressure.

Over the coming months, MOBOTIX will develop intelligent IP 

video solutions for select market segments with a unique com-

petitive edge (e.g. due to system architecture or robust design) 

and will emphasize appropriate customer projects via key-

account sales and the global network of certified partners. As 

such, robust outdoor cameras will increasingly also be used as 

sensors in industrial automation, such as for monitoring tem-

perature-critical processes, early fire recognition tests or within 

the scope of preventative maintenance.

MOBOTIX currently offers a wide range of IP video cameras plus 

accessories, along with its own video management software. 

The goal of the Company is to provide more software applications 

and add peripheral components (switch, IR emitter, NAS, etc.) 

to the MOBOTIX MOVE segment, thereby offering a complete 

system from a single provider and giving itself a competitive 

edge. Thanks to the 2018 launch of the MOBOTIX MOVE camera 

portfolio as a “complementary portfolio“ and regular extensions, 

it was possible to offer customers additional business opportu-

nities. MOBOTIX will continue to focus on additional MOBOTIX 

MOVE products and associated business options, incorporating 

them into our product portfolio in accordance with our high-

quality standards.

Further opportunities arise from the improved integration 

options resulting from the adoption of standards such as ONVIF 

and H.264/H.265 and from the integration of MOBOTIX cameras 

with leading video management systems as well as from the 

ONVIF compatibility of our products.

MOBOTIX also optimizes the MOBOTIX AG sales and earnings 

model by monetizing software through license models. As part 

of the market launch of the MOBOTIX 7 M73 and S74 cameras in 

the 2019/20 financial year, additional high-performance video 

analysis apps have also been made available via licensing, which 

enables the development of new market verticals through new 

customer solutions.

In the future, MOBOTIX will continue to focus to an even greater 

extent on technology partnerships to respond to the diverse 

requirements in the vertical markets with optimally tailored 

complete solutions.

Moreover, today‘s cooperation with Konica Minolta is already 

opening up good growth opportunities in the medium-term for 

technologically oriented order development and sales.
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Forecast Report

For the financial year 2023/24, the MOBOTIX Group‘s envisaged 

sales are in the region of €54 million to €56 million. Accordingly, 

the EBIT for financial year 2023/24 is in the region of €0.3 million 

to €1.0 million. For MOBOTIX AG, the Management Board expects 

similar sales and EBIT trends as are expected for the MOBOTIX 

Group. The revenue is contingent upon the overall economic 

situation due to the impact of the Ukraine conflict and the Middle 

East conflict, as well as the development of interest rates and 

inflation, and thus, the construction cost trends.

The forward-looking statements made above are predictions.

Dependent Company Report

A report on the relationships with affiliated companies was pre-

pared for the 2022/23 financial year in accordance with Section 

312 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG). Regarding those 

transactions that have to be reported, the report states: “The 

Management Board declares that, for the legal transactions and 

measures disclosed in the report regarding relationships with 

affiliated companies, adequate consideration was received by 

the Company for each legal transaction and the Company was 

not disadvantaged by the implemented measures according to 

the circumstances that were known to us at the time the legal 

transactions were concluded or the measures were implemen-

ted. No measures have been refrained from at the behest or in 

the interest of the controlling company or a company affiliated 

with it.”

Winnweiler-Langmeil, March 21, 2024

The Management Board

Christian Cabirol • CTO          Klaus Kiener • CFO Thomas Lausten • CEO Philippos Antoniou • CSMO
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MOBOTIX Stock Overview

Security identification number 521830

ISIN DE0005218309

Stock symbol MBQ 

Bloomberg MBQ:GR 

Reuters Instrument Code MBQGn.DE 

Market segment Open market (basic board)

Stock exchange Frankfurt 

Share capital 13,271,442 EUR 

Shares outstanding (as of 30.09.2023) 61,558 shares 
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Balance Sheet 

� 09/30/2023 09/30/2022

See Notes €‘000s €‘000s

ASSETS

Intangible Assets   

Self-created intangible assets 12,211 9911

Purchased industrial property rights and similar rights and assets as well as licenses to such 
rights and assets 690 1107

Goodwill 3649 4074

Advance payments 447 246

16,997 15,338

Property, Plant And Equipment                                                                                                                        (1)

Land and buildings, including buildings on third-party land 10,115 10,708

Technical equipment and machinery 1100 1354

Other equipment, factory and office equipment 2469 2664

Advance payments and assets under construction 6 4

13,690 14,730

Financial Assets                                                                                                                                                         (2)

Shares in affiliated companies 0 0

0 0

30,687 30,068

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventory

Raw materials and supplies 13,732 15,276

Work in progress 3854 3865

Finished goods and merchandise 7703 11,427

25,289 30,568

Receivables And Other Assets� (3)

Trade receivables 14,723 15,225

Receivables due from affiliated companies 3662 4276

Other assets 751 1191

19,136 20,692

Cash In Hand And Bank Balances 944 2271

45,369 53,531

PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED CHARGES 680 767

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS                                                                                                                                          (4) 4753 3596

ASSETS 81,490 87,962
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Balance Sheet 

� 09/30/2023 09/30/2022

See Notes €‘000s €‘000s

EQUITY� (5)

Subscribed Capital 13,271 13,271

./. Treasury shares -62 -62

(Corrected) subscribed capital 13,209 13,209

Capital Reserves 1250 1250

Retained Earnings

Statutory reserve 78 77

Other retained earnings 18,790 17,974

18,869 18,051

Equity Capital Difference From Currency Conversion 44 214

Loss Carryforward -9777 -2668

Consolidated Net Loss -5409 -6313

18,186 23,743

PROVISIONS   

Provisions for taxes 19 40                 

Other provisions                                                                                                                                                  (6) 7590 9231

7609 9271

LIABILITIES�   (7)

Bank loans and overdrafts 14,011 38,674

Advance payments received for orders 8 2

Trade payables 6300 7514

Liabilities to affiliated companies 30,090 4748

Other liabilities 1762 1151

52,171 52,089

PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED CHARGES 93 40

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES�   3430 2819

LIABILITIES 81,490 87,962

47



Consolidated Income Statement 

10/01/2022
-

09/30/2023

10/01/2021
-

09/30/2022

See Notes €‘000s €‘000s

Revenue from sales� (8) 63,168 56,037

Increase/decrease in finished and unfinished goods and work in progress -1517 993

Other own work capitalized 3922 3227

Other operating income                                                                                                                                       (9, 11) 1375 826

Material costs 27,936 28,321

a) Expenses for raw, auxiliary and operating materials as well as for purchased goods 22,031 2601

b) Expenses for purchased services 5905 5720

Personnel expenses 25,389 25,828

a) Wages and salaries 21,807 21,860

b) Social security contributions and expenditure on pension benefits 
of which relating to pensions EUR 36,000 (previous year: EUR 43,000) 3582 3968

Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation of property, plants and equipment 4219 3649

Other operating expenses                                                                                                                                    (9, 11) 13,288 10,744

Interest and similar expenses 1489 306

Taxes from income and profit                                                                                                                                   (12) -23 -1495

a) Current taxes 523 184

b) Deferred taxes� (4) -546 -1679

AFTER-TAX PROFIT -5351 -6271

Other taxes 58 42

CONSOLIDATED NET LOSS -5409 -6313
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

10/01/2022
-

09/30/2023

10/01/2021
-

09/30/2022

See Notes €‘000s €‘000s

Annual result before taxes on income -5432 -7808

+	 Income from interest 1489 306

+	 Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation of property, plants and equipment 4219 3649

-/+	 Increase/decrease of other provisions -241 -517

+	 Loss due to disposal of fixed and tangible assets 3 110

+	 Other non-cash expenses 0 0

Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 38 -4260

-	 Increase in inventory, trade receivables and other assets that do not fall under investment or 
financing activities 6922 -6068

+	 Increase in trade payables and other liabilities that do not fall under investment or financing 
activities 3714 6067

Cash flow from operating activities before taxes on income 3246 -4261

- 	 Income tax payments -522 -166

Cash flow from operating activities 2724 -4427

Cash flow from investing activities

-	 Cash outflows for purchases of property, plants and equipment -490 -1404

-	 Cash outflows for purchases of intangible assets  -4396 -3492

-	 Payments for additions to the scope of consolidation -1400 -1770

Cash flow from investing activities -6286 -6666

Cash flow from financing activities

-  	 Dividend payments 0 -531

- 	 Cash outflows for redemption of loans -1278 -12,612

+	 Cash inflows from the take-up of loans                 28,515 3000

- 	 Interest paid -1.489 -306

Cash flow from financing activities 25,748 -10,449

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 22,186 -21,542

+	 Net change in financial facilities due to exchange rate -128 56

+	 Consolidation-related changes in the scope of funds 0 257

          Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period -29,529 -8300

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period                 -7471                        -29,529

Transfer to inventory in accordance with balance sheet:

+ Short-term loans 8415 31,800

Cash in hand and bank balances 944 2271
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-62

Subscri-
bed capital

Treasury 
shares

(Corrected) 
subscribed 

capital

Capital 
reserves

Statutory 
reserve

Other retained 
earnings

€'000s €'000s €'000s €'000s €'000s €'000s

As at 10/01/2021 13,271 -106 13,165 1250 77 17,819

Allocation to reserves

Distribution

Currency conversion

Issuance of treasury shares 44 44 155

Consolidated annual net  
profit

As at 09/30/2022 13,271 -62 13,209 1250 77 17,974

As at 10/01/2023 13,271 -62 13,209 1250 77 17,974

Allocation to reserves

Distribution

Issuance of treasury shares 44 44 155

Currency conversion

Change in the scope of  
consolidation

Consolidated annual net  
profit

As at 09/30/2023 13,271 -62 13,209 1250 78 18,791
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Shareholding

Company Registered office 09/30/2023 09/30/2022

MOBOTIX CORP New York, USA   100.00% 100.00%

MOBOTIX LIMITED Nottingham, GB   100.00% 100.00%

MOBOTIX SINGAPORE PTE. LTD. Singapur, SG   100.00% 100.00%

MOBOTIX AUSTRALIA PTY LTD Sydney, AU   100.00% 100.00%

VAXTOR TECHNOLOGIES, S.L. Madrid, ES   100.00%   100.00%

VAXTOR ASIA PTE. LTD. Singapur, SG   100.00%   100.00%

VAXTOR SYSTEMS CORPORATION Maryland, USA -   100.00%

Development Of Group Equity

Reserves Equity difference from  
currency conversion

Loss  
carryforward 

Consolidated 
net loss Group equity

Group equity TEUR TEUR TEUR

As at 10/01/2021 17,896 146 -2137 -62 30,320

Allocation to reserves

Distribution -531 -531

Issuance of treasury shares 155 199

Currency conversion 67 67

Consolidated annual net 
profit -6313 -6313

As at 09/30/2022 18,051 214 -2668 -6313 23,743

As at 10/01/2022 18,051 214 -8981 23,743

Allocation to reserves 818 -818

Distribution

Issuance of treasury shares

Currency conversion -170 22 -148

Consolidated net loss -5409 -5409

As at 09/30/2023 18,869 44 -9777 -5409 18,186
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A.	 General Information
The financial year used by MOBOTIX AG begins on October 1 and 

ends on September 30 of the following year.

The consolidated financial statement of MOBOTIX AG has been 

prepared in line with the stipulations of the German Commercial 

Code (Sections 290 ff.).

The Company is entered in the Commercial Register in Kaisers-

lautern as MOBOTIX AG, Commercial Register No. 3724.

The assets and liabilities were assessed and valued under the 

assumption of the company‘s continued operation. In relation 

to the creditworthiness of MOBOTIX AG and, consequently, the 

Group, as well as the existing credit commitments, financing 

risks exist. Of the liabilites to credit instiutions disclosed within 

the Group as of the reporting date amounting to EUR 14.0 mil-

lion, EUR 9.8 million have a term of up to one year. Should the 

credit instiutions in the future fail to extend their credit lines, or 

do so only with amounts lower than those utilized, the majority 

shareholder Konica Minolta, Inc., has contractually pledged to 

undertake the financing until June 30, 2025, and has provided 

a qualified subordination declaration. The existing credit lines 

of the majority shareholder Konica Minolta, Inc., already utilized, 

were contractually extended beyond the calendar year 2024 until 

June 30, 2025, and a qualified subordination declaration was 

provided. Additionally, the majority shareholder has commited 

to providing another loan of EUR 7.0 million, limited until June 

30, 2025, and has provided a qualified subordination declaration. 

The current earnings and liquidity forecasts of MOBOTIX AG, and, 

consequently, the Group, include cash inflows prepared based 

on the best possible estimates of the Management Board. Should 

siginificant delays in planned revenues occur or further signifi-

cant delays in receipt of payments, or should one or more ot the 

assumptions underlying the forecasts prove incorrect, further 

support from the majority shareholder in the form of loans or 

the external sources of financing, for example, within the frame-

work of a capital increase based on an authorized capital of EUR 

6.5 million, will be necessary to enable the continuation of 

MOBOTIX AG and, therefore, the Group. This represents a signi-

ficant uncertainty related to events or cirumstances that may 

cast significant doubt on the company‘s ability to continue its 

operations. We have used the total cost method for the income 

statement as we did in the previous year.

There may be minor discrepancies in the figures provided in 

euro or as a percentage, since the figures have been rounded to 

the nearest thousand euro.

Scope of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include all companies 

over which the company directly or indirectly exercises a domi-

nant influence with the exception of MOBOTIX LIMITED, Notting-

ham, United Kingdom. 

MOBOTIX LIMITED, Nottingham, is not included in the consoli-

dated financial statements as it is not material to the presenta-

tion of a true and fair view of the MOBOTIX Group’s net assets, 

financial position and results of operations.

VAXTOR SYSTEMS CORPORATION, USA, was liquidated in the 

reporting year in May 2023.

Financial Assets

Name and registered office of company Share of capital Equity Result in 2022/23

MOBOTIX LIMITED, Nottingham, UK*) 100.0 1 British pound 0 British pounds

*) not operational
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B.	 Principles Of Consolidation

The annual financial statements and interim financial statements 

of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements 

of MOBOTIX AG are prepared in line with Group-wide accounting 

policies as per the reporting date of September 30, 2023.

Consolidation Of Investments
Equity consolidation for companies that are consolidated for the 

first time as a result of an acquisition is carried out using the acqui-

sition method at the time the company became a subsidiary. 

The value of the shares owned by the parent company is offset 

against the amount of the equity of the subsidiary attributable 

to those shares. Treasury equity is recognized at the amount 

corresponding to the fair value of assets, liabilities and deferred 

income items to be included in the consolidated financial state-

ments at the date of consolidation. Any goodwill remaining after 

netting is recognized as goodwill if it arises on the assets side 

and, if it arises on the liabilities side, as equity under the item 

„Difference from equity consolidation.“

In principle, the date on which the company became a subsidi-

ary is the date on which it determines the fair value of the assets 

and liabilities to be included in the consolidated financial state-

ments and the date on which the company was consolidated. 

In the case of subsidiaries whose inclusion had previously been 

waived in accordance with Section 296 HGB, the date of inclusion 

of the subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements is 

decisive. 

Liability Consolidation/Interim Results/Consolidation 
Of Expenditures And Incomes

Intra-Group receivables and liabilities between the companies 

included in the consolidated financial statements and the total 

expenditures and income from intra-Group deliveries and ser-

vices are offset. In the consolidated income statement, the 

income from internal sales and other intra-Group income is off-

set against the corresponding expenses. Interim results within 

the scope of consolidation are eliminated. Profits and losses 

between the consolidated companies („interim results“) are also 

eliminated as part of the consolidation process. 

Currency Conversion
The assets and liabilities listed in the annual financial statements 

prepared in foreign currency are translated into euro using the 

mean spot exchange rate as of the reporting date, with the excep-

tion of equity which is to be translated into Euro at historical rates. 

Items on the income statement in the annual financial statements 

prepared in foreign currency are translated into euro at average 

monthly exchange rates. The difference due to currency transla-

tion is listed under the “Equity capital difference from currency 

conversion” item as part of the consolidated equity.

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of 

differences between the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, 

prepaid expenses and deferred income and the corresponding 

carrying amounts reported in the tax accounts as well as diffe-

rences due to the consolidation measures set out in Sections 

300 to 307 HGB, provided these differences are expected to les-

sen in subsequent financial years.  However, differences arising 

from the initial recognition of goodwill from equity consolidation 

are not taken into account. The resulting tax expenses and bene-

fits are recognized in full without netting.

In addition, differences that are based on consolidation measu-

res under Sections 300 to 307 HGB are also taken into account, 

but differences from the initial recognition of goodwill from 

equity consolidation are not taken into account.
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C.	 Information On Accounting Policies 

Accounting Principles

The accounting and valuation methods are basically unchanged 

from the previous year.

Intangible Assets, Property, Plants And Equipment 
And Financial Assets
Development costs are capitalized as self-created intangible 

assets. Capitalization occurs when it is sufficiently likely that the 

completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible and 

that future surpluses arise from the marketing. MOBOTIX AG and 

its subsidiaries do not carry out any research.  

Capitalized development costs are amortized over the expected 

commercial useful life of five years. The depreciation starts at 

the end of the development phase. This is the time from which 

the asset can be used. 

Purchased intangible assets are valued at acquisition cost less 

scheduled straight-line amortization in accordance with the 

expected useful life of two to ten  years.

Property, plant and equipment are valued at acquisition or 

manufacturing cost less scheduled straight-line depreciation in 

accordance with the expected useful life of between three and 

thirty-three years. Grants received are deducted from the acqui-

sition or production costs.

A fixed value of EUR 1,151,000 was established for camera stocks  

for MOBOTIX AG and USD 179,000 for MOBOTIX CORP that are 

intended for permanent use in the company.

The manufacturing cost of internally generated property, plants 

and equipment includes the direct cost of materials and produc-

tion as well as an appropriate proportion of the necessary mate-

rials and production overheads incurred, including production-

related depreciation. Administrative costs are not capitalized.

Borrowing costs are not included in the cost of sales.

Inventories
The materials and supplies reported under inventories are reco-

gnized at their average cost price, taking into account their rea-

lizable value on the balance sheet date and the lower-of-cost-

and-market principle. Work in progress and finished goods are 

valued at their manufacturing cost in accordance with the lower-

of-cost-or-market principle. Manufacturing costs include the 

direct cost of materials and production as well as an appropriate 

proportion of the materials and production overheads incurred 

and production-related depreciation of non-current assets. Bor-

rowing interest is not included in the cost of production; admi-

nistrative costs are not capitalized either.

All recognizable risks arising from reduced usability and lower 

replacement costs are taken into account through appropriate 

write-downs. 

Receivables And Other Assets
Receivables and other assets are valued at their nominal value, 

taking into account all identifiable risks. All risk items are taken 

into account by forming appropriate individual value adjust-

ments. The general credit risk is taken into account by means of 

flat-rate discounts.

Cash In Hand And Bank Balances
Cash in hand and bank balances are valued at face value. 

Deferred Taxes
To determine deferred taxes due to temporary or quasi-permanent 

differences between the valuation of assets under commercial law, 

debts and deferred income and their tax values or tax loss carry-

forwards are valued at the company‘s individual tax rates at the 

time the differences are reduced and the amounts of the resulting 

tax burden and relief are not discounted. 

Tax deferred assets on both the assets and liabilities sides are 

shown without netting.
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Equity
Equity is recognized at nominal value.

Provisions
Tax and other provisions take appropriate account of all identi-

fiable risks and contingent liabilities; they are recognized at the 

settlement amount dictated by prudent business practice. Future 

price and cost increases are factored in if there is sufficiently 

objective evidence to suggest that they will materialize. Provisi-

ons with a residual maturity of more than one year are discoun-

ted using the maturity-matched average market interest rate.

Liabilities
Liabilities are carried at their settlement amount.

Currency Conversion
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are gene-

rally translated at the average spot exchange rate on the balance 

sheet date, as all foreign currency items have residual terms of 

less than one year. Section 253 (1) sentence 1 and section 252 

(1) no. 4 clause 2 of the German Commercial Code (Handelsge-

setzbuch, HGB) are not applied in this respect.
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D.	 	Information and Explanations Regarding Individual Items On The Consolidated 
Income Statement

(1)	 Intangible Assets and Property, Plants And 
Equipment

The changes in the non-current intangible assets and property, 

plant and equipment reported on the balance sheet are presen-

ted in the statement of changes in non-current assets (annex to 

the notes).

Self-Created Intangible Assets
In the 2021/22 financial year, research and development costs 

totaled EUR 7,916,000. In total, an amount of EUR 4,498,000 was 

capitalized among the internally generated intangible assets.

Purchased Industrial Property Rights And Similar 
Rights And Assets As Well As Licenses To Such 
Rights And Assets
The technologies and brand names capitalized as part of the 

initial consolidation of the VAXTOR Group are depreciated over 

a period of four to ten years.

Goodwill
The initial consolidation of the VAXTOR Group in fiscal year 

2021/22 resulted in goodwill of EUR 4,251,000.

This goodwill will is based on a useful life of ten years based on 

the life cycle of the products of the acquired companies. The 

remaining book value at the reference date amounts to EUR 

3,649,000.

(2)	 Trade Receivables, Receivables From Affilia-
ted Companies And Other Assets

Trade receivables, receivables from affiliated companies and 

other assets have a residual term of less than one year, as in the 

previous year. 

(3)	 Receivables From Affiliated Companies
Receivables from affiliated companies of EUR 3,662,000 (previ-

ous year: EUR 4,276,000) include trade receivables from com-

panies of the Konica Minolta Group, in whose consolidated finan-

cial statements MOBOTIX AG is included by way of full consoli-

dation; in this respect, a consolidated statement in the conso-

lidated financial statements of MOBOTIX AG itself is produced 

in the consolidated financial statements of MOBOTIX AG. 

(4)	 Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax assets of EUR 4,752,000 (previous year: EUR 

3,596,000) comprise accumulated tax losses of EUR 4,744,000 

(previous year: EUR 3,222,000) from income tax loss carryfor-

wards that occurred in previous years and in the 2022/23 finan-

cial year and in the amount of EUR 374,000 from the elimination 

of sales with Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A., Inc., which 

are to be eliminated from the Group’s point of view as a result 

of the resale to MOBOTIX CORP, USA. Deferred tax assets resulting 

from the elimination of interim results from deliveries between 

MOBOTIX AG and MOBOTIX CORP were not produced in the 

reporting year (previous year: EUR 0). The recognition of defer-

red tax assets is based on a tax rate of 29.0%.

Deferred tax assets on tax relief entitlements in the United Sta-

tes, which are expected to arise from the anticipated use of exis-

ting loss carryforwards in the future five years, are not being 

recognized owing to the past and current loss situation.

(5)	 Equity
The subscribed capital corresponds to the share capital of 

MOBOTIX AG as of the relevant balance sheet date.

As of the balance sheet date, the company had issued 13,271,442 

ordinary shares, 13,165,536 of which are in circulation. It held 

61,558 shares as treasury shares as of September 30, 2023. These 

no-par-value shares each represent EUR 1.00 of the Company’s 

share capital, which is fully paid-up.

By resolution of the Annual General Meeting on January 27, 2022, 

an Authorized Capital of EUR 6,500,000 was established for period 

of 5 years. 

The accumulated deficit for the fiscal year ending  September 

30, 2022, amounting to EUR 197,000, was carried forward to new 

account.
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The Annual General Meeting held on May 28, 2018, adopted a 

resolution to authorize the Management Board once again – sub-

ject to compliance with the principle of equal treatment (Section 

53a of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)) – to acquire 

treasury shares up to a total of 10% of the Company’s existing 

share capital on or before April 30, 2023. The shares acquired 

under this authorization – in conjunction with other Company 

shares which the Company has already acquired or still posses-

ses, or which are attributable to it pursuant to Sections 71d and 

71e AktG – must at no time account for more than 10% of the 

Company’s share capital.

At the Management Board’s discretion, shares are acquired on 

the open market or via a public purchase offer to all Company 

stockholders or by means of a public call to stockholders to sub-

mit offers to sell. 

The Company did not purchase any treasury shares in the 

2022/23 financial year. Its treasury shares account for EUR 62,000 

of its share capital. The treasury shares were purchased in the 

2010/11 and 2011/12 financial years.

The capital reserves consist of share premiums received from 

various capital increases in the past. 

A statutory reserve required under Section 150 (1) of the German 

Stock Corporation Act (AktG) totals EUR 77,000; this amount has 

been allocated in previous years in accordance with Section 150 

(2) AktG..

EUR 17,678,000 was allocated to other retained earnings pursu-

ant to the resolution adopted by the Annual General Meeting 

held on May 28, 2018.

The distributable profit comprises accrued, retained profits and 

not the annual results allocated to the other retained earnings.

The Management Board of MOBOTIX AG proposes carrying for-

ward the MOBOTIX AG balance sheet loss of EUR 5,739,000 to a 

new account.

The other retained earnings,  net of accumulated losses, at the 

parent company according to Section 268 (8) of the German 

Commercial Code (HGB),  are restricted from distribution due 

to the activation of internally generated intangible assets, taking 

into account passive deferred taxes amounting to EUR 7,495,000 

and to active deferred taxes amounting to EUR 4,744,000.

(6)	 Other provisions
Other provisions primarily include the following types of provi-

sions.

Provisions

Provisions for purchase price  
obligations

EUR 2,800,000  
(previous year:  
EUR 4,200,000)

Provisions for outstanding invoices
EUR 1,578,000

(previous year:   
EUR 1,661,000)

Provisions for annual bonuses and 
sales commissions

EUR 739,000  
(previous year:  

EUR 769,000)  

Provisions for vacation
EUR 466,000  

(previous year:  
EUR 572,000)  

Provisions for Christmas bonuses
EUR 390,000  

(previous year:  
EUR 351,000).
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(7)	 Liabilities
The table below shows the residual maturities and security inte-

rests of the liabilities reported on the balance sheet (€‘000s; 

previous years‘ figures in brackets).

Other liabilities include social security payments of EUR 665,000 

(previous year: EUR 720,000) and taxes of EUR 357,000 (previous 

year: EUR 264,000).

Liabilities to affiliated companies relate to trade payables and 

the loan from Konica Minolta Inc., Tokyo, Japan, in the amount 

of EUR 28,500,000.

(8)	 Passive deferred tax assets
In the consolidated notes, it is necessary to specify the differen-

ces or tax loss carryforwards on which the deferred taxes are 

based and the tax rates used for valuation. Additionally, disclose 

the deferred tax balances at the end of the fiscal year and any 

changes to these balances that occurred during the fiscal year.

The passive deferred taxes amounting to EUR 3,430,000 (prior 

year: EUR 2,819) consist of EUR 295,000 (prior year: EUR 337,000) 

resulting from the initial consolidation of the VAXTOR Group in 

the fiscal year 2021/22 and EUR 3,136,000 (prior year: 2,482,000) 

resulting from the activation of internally generated intangible 

assets. The calculation of passive deferred taxes is based on an 

approximate tax rate of 29.0%.

(9)	 Revenue From Sales
Sales revenue comprises revenue of EUR 61,133,000 (previous 

year EUR 53,578,000) from the sale of video management 

systems, revenue of EUR 477,000(previous year EUR 885,000) 

from the sale of components to external manufacturers, revenue 

from the contract development for Konica Minolta, Inc. Tokyo, 

Japan in the amount of EUR 1,558,000 (previous year: EUR 

1,574,000). 

Revenues from the sale of video management system solutions 

of EUR 15,696,000 (previous year: EUR 15,266,000) are attribu-

table to Germany, EUR 26,054,000 (previous year: EUR 

19,510,000) to the rest of Europe and EUR 19,383,000 (previous 

year: EUR 18,802,000) to the rest of the world.

From the Group’s perspective, revenues from MOBOTIX AG with 

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A., Inc., which are in con-

nection with the resale to MOBOTIX CORP, USA, have been eli-

minated.

(10)	Extraordinary Income And Expenses
Within other operating expenses, expenses related to the for-

mation of individual value adjustments on receiveables from 

deliveries and services amount EUR 3,392,000 (previous year: 

EUR 291,00)

Liabilities
Maturity period of which secured

Total up to 1 year 1 to 5 years over 5 years Amount Note

to financial institutions 14,011
(38,674)

9761
(33,078)

4250
(5585)

0
(11)

5500
(6750)

1

arising from advance payments 
received for orders

8
(2)

8
(2)

0
(0)

0
(0)

0
(0)

trade receivables 6300
(7514)

6300
(7514)

0
(0)

0
(0)

0
(0)

liabilities to affiliated companies 30,090
(4748)

30,090
(4748)

0
(0)

0
(0)

0
(0)

other liabilities 1762
(1151)

1762
(1151)

0
(0)

0
(0)

0
(0)

Total 52,171
(52,089)

47,921
 (46,493)

4250
(5585)

0
(11)

5500
(6750)

1 = Land charges  
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(11)	 Income And Expenses From Other Reporting 
Periods

Other operating income includes income of EUR 156,000 (pre-

vious year: EUR 70,000) from other reporting periods, while other 

operating expenses include expenses of EUR 67,000 (previous 

year: EUR 52,000) from other reporting periods.

(12)	Other Financial Obligations 
Other financial obligations mainly consist of the order obligation 

for components. As of September 30, 2023, the order obligation 

for components amounts to EUR 7,298,000.  

(13)	Currency Conversion Income And Expenses
Other operating income includes income of EUR 849,000 (pre-

vious year: EUR 489,000) from currency conversion, while other 

operating expenses include expenses of EUR 1,137,000 (previous 

year: EUR 367,000) from other reporting periods.

(14)	 Derivative financial instruments
No derivative financial instruments exist at the balance sheet 

date. No economic hedging relationships had been entered into 

at the balance sheet date.

(15)	Taxes From Income And Profit
Income and revenues taxes include income of EUR 2,302,000 

from the formation of deferred tax assets on the loss carryfor-

wards and expenses of EUR 1,756,000 from the formation of 

deferred tax liabilities on the capitalization of development costs. 
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E.	 Other Compulsory Information

(1)	 Average Number of People Employed	
in the Financial Year (Full-Time Equivalent)

The following groups of employees (excluding the Management 

Board, trainees and temporary employees) were employed by 

the Group during the 2022/23 financial year:

Full-time employees 300.3

Part-time employees 25.2

The total number of people employed on average was 325.6 

(previous year: 341.3).

(2)	 Auditor’s Fees
The following information must be provided for MOBOTIX AG’s 

independent auditors, Ernst & Young GmbH, in the financial year 

in accordance with Section 285 (17) of the German Commercial 

Code (HGB):

Fees

2022/23 2021/22

TEUR TEUR

Statutory Audit Services

invoiced 222 32

from provisions 70 106

Total 292 138

(3)	 MOBOTIX AG Management Board

Members of the MOBOTIX AG Management Board 
•	 Thomas Lausten, Master of Business Administration, 

Kaiserslautern, Germany (Chairman)

•	 Klaus Kiener, Graduate in Business Administration,  

Wiesbaden, Germany (Chief FInancial Officer)

•	 Hartmut Sprave, Graduate Physicist, Otterbach, Germany  

(till March 31, 2023) (Chief Technology Officer)

•	 Dr. Christian Cabirol, PhD in Engineering, Kaiserslautern, 

Germany (from April 01, 2023)  

(Chief Technology Officer)

•	 Philippos Antoniou, Bachelor of Science in Business  

Information Systems, Barnet, Great Britain (from May 1, 

2023) (Chief Sales and Marketing Officer)

Management Board Member Remuneration
The total remuneration paid to the members of the Management 

Board amounted to EUR 968,000 (previous year: EUR 918,000). 

This consisted entirely of short-term remuneration. 

(4)	 MOBOTIX AG Supervisory Board 

Members Of The Supervisory Board
•	 	Toshiya Eguchi, Executive Officer at Konica Minolta, Inc., 

Tokyo, Japan, responsible for IoT Service Platform Deve-

lopment, Imaging-IoT Solution Business and Visual Solu-

tions Business (Chairman)

•	 Olaf Jonas, General Manager Corporate Governance Divi-

sion, Konica Minolta Business Solutions Europe GmbH, 

Langenhagen, Germany (till September 30, 2023)

•	 Koji Ozeki, General Manager Imaging-IoT Solution Deve-

lopment, Konica Minolta Business Solutions Europe 

GmbH, Mainz, Germany (from November 2021)

•	 Olaf Lorenz, General Manager Corporate Governance Divi-

sion, Konica Minolta Business Solutions Europe GmbH, 

Langenhagen, Germany (from October 01, 2023)

Supervisory Board Members‘ Remuneration
Each member of the Supervisory Board receives a fixed annual 

remuneration of EUR 10,000 for their services. In addition, each 

member of the Supervisory Board receives for their work vari-

able remuneration amounting to EUR 75.00 for each EUR 0.01 

of the Company‘s earnings per share as shown in the HGB con-

solidated financial statements and calculated in accordance with 

the principles of the Society of Investment Professionals in 

Germany (DVFA) (based on share capital of EUR 13,271,442.00 

divided into 13,271,442 no-par-value shares, each representing 

EUR 1.00 of the share capital). The Chairman of the Supervisory 

Board receives twice the fixed and variable remuneration. 

The total remuneration paid to the members of the Supervisory 

Board amounted to EUR 40,000 in the 2022/23 financial year 

(previous year: EUR 40,000).
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(5)	 Group Affiliation
MOBOTIX AG is a subsidiary of Konica Minolta, Inc., Tokyo, Japan, 

which in turn is a subsidiary of Konica Minolta Holdings, Inc., 

Tokyo, Japan.

Konica Minolta Holdings, Inc., Tokyo, Japan prepares the con-

solidated financial statements for the largest group of companies. 

These consolidated financial statements are translated into 

German and published in the Federal Gazette and can be obtai-

ned from the company. MOBOTIX AG prepares the consolidated 

financial statement for the smallest group of companies, which 

is published in the Federal Gazette and can be obtained from 

the company.

(6)	 Business With Related Companies And  
Individuals

No unusual market transactions were conducted with related 

companies or individuals.

(7)	 Notifications Pursuant to Section 20 (1), (5) 
and (6) of the German Stock Corporation Act

Dr. Ralf Hinkel Holding GmbH, Kaiserslautern, Germany, notified 

us, in accordance with Section 20 (5) of the German Stock Cor-

poration Act (AktG), in a letter dated May 13, 2016, that it no 

longer holds the majority of shares and voting rights (majority 

interest) of MOBOTIX AG as of May 10, 2016, in accordance with 

Section 20 (4) AktG.

Dr. Ralf Hinkel Holding GmbH, Kaiserslautern, Germany, informed 

us in the same letter that it no longer holds more than a quarter 

of the shares in MOBOTIX AG as of May 10, 2016, in accordance 

with Section 20 (1) of AktG, even with the addition of shares 

(Section 20 (2) AktG).

Konica Minolta, Inc., Tokyo, Japan, informed us in a letter dated 

May 10, 2016, in accordance with Section 20 (1) and (3) AktG, 

that it holds more than a quarter of the shares in MOBOTIX AG, 

even without the addition of shares (Section 20 (2) AktG).

Konica Minolta, Inc., Tokyo, Japan, informed us in the same let-

ter, in accordance with Section 20 (4) AktG, that it holds the 

majority of shares and voting rights (majority interest) in 

MOBOTIX AG.

(8)	 Supplementary Report
As of December 31, 2023, an additional loan of EUR 5,000,000 

was taken over from a credit institution by Konica Minolta, and 

another intercompany loan of EUR 700,000 was granted. The 

reported balance of intercompany loans thus amounts to EUR 

34,200,00 as of March 21, 2024. The financing acquired from the 

credit institutions by the majority shareholder Konica Minolta 

on February 24, 2023, was extended to June 30, 2025, on Feb-

ruary 28, 2024, along with a qualified subordination agreement. 

Additionally, on February 28, 2024, the majority shareholder has 

temporarily committed to further support in the form of loans 

amounting to EUR 7,000,000 until June 30, 2025. Utilization of 

EUR 2,500,000 is anticipated by March 31, 2024.

Furthermore, the Management Board refers to the disclosures 

in the management report.

After the close of the fiscal year, no further significant events 

have occurred that would have a material financial impact on 

the financial position and results of operations of the MOBOTIX 

Group.

 

Winnweiler-Langmeil, March 21, 2024 

The Management Board

Thomas Lausten • CEO

Klaus Kiener • CFO

Christian Cabirol • CTO         

Philippos Antoniou • CSMO
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Annex To The Notes

As at 
10/01/2022

Additions Disposals
Transfer 
postings

Currency 
translation 
differences

As at 
9/30/2023

€‘000s €‘000s €‘000s €‘000s €‘000s €‘000s

Initial investment costs/manufacturing costs

Intangible assets

Self-created intangible assets 12,194 3990 16,184

Purchased industrial property rights and 
similar rights and assets as well as licenses 
to such rights and assets

3901 107 98 -7 4099

Goodwill 4251 4251

Advance payments 246 300 -98 448

Total intangible assets 20,592 4,397 0 0 -7 24,982

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings, including buildings on 
third-party land 18,244 18,244

Technical equipment and machinery 11,129 85 -2 11,212

Other equipment, factory and office equip-
ment 13,375 401 -2 2 -9 13,767

Advance payments and assets under const-
ruction 4 4 -2 6

Total property, plant and equipment 42,752 490 -4 -9 43,229

Aggregated amortization and depreciation

Intangible assets

Self-created intangible assets 2283 1690 3973

Purchased industrial property rights and 
similar rights and assets as well as licenses 
to such rights and assets

2794 616 3410

Goodwill 177 425 602

Advance payments 0 0

Total intangible assets 5254 2731 0 0 0 7985

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings, including buildings on 
third-party land 7536 592 8128

Technical equipment and machinery 9775 338 10,113

Other equipment, factory and office equip-
ment 10,711 547 41 11,299

Advance payments and assets under const-
ruction 0 0 0

Total property, plant and equipment 28,022 1477 41 0 0 29,540
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Annex To The Notes

As at 
10/01/2022

Additions Disposals
Transfer 
postings

Currency 
translation 
differences

As at 
9/30/2023

€‘000s €‘000s €‘000s €‘000s €‘000s €‘000s

Net carrying amount

Intangible assets

Self-created intangible assets 9,911 12,211

Purchased industrial property rights and 
similar rights and assets as well as licenses 
to such rights and assets

1,107 689

Goodwill 4,074 3649

Advance payments 246 448

Total intangible assets 15,338 0 0 0 0 16,997

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings, including buildings on 
third-party land 10,708 10,115

Technical equipment and machinery 1354 1100

Other equipment, factory and office  
equipment 2664 2469

Advance payments and assets under  
construction 4 6

Total property, plant and equipment 14,730 0 0 0 0 13,690
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To MOBOTIX AG 

Opinions
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 

M0B0TIX AG, Winnweiler-Langmeil, and its subsidiaries (the 

Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 

September 2023, the consolidated income statement, the con-

solidated cash flow statement and the development of Group 

equity for the fiscal year from 1 0ctober 2022 to 30 September 

2023, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies. In addi-

tion, we have audited the consolidated management report of 

M0B0TIX AG, which has been combined with the management 

report of the Company, for the fiscal year from 1 0ctober 2022 

to 30 September 2023. 

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the 

audit, 

•	 the accompanying consolidated financial statements 

comply, in all material respects, with the requirements of 

German commercial law and give a true and fair view of 

the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Group 

as at 30 September 2023 and of its financial performance 

for the fiscal year from 1 0ctober 2022 to 30 September 

2023 in compliance with German legally required accoun-

ting principles, and 

•	 the accompanying consolidated management report as a 

whole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s posi-

tion. In all material respects, this consolidated manage-

ment report is consistent with the consolidated financial 

statements, complies with German legal requirements 

and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of 

future development. 

Pursuant to Sec. 322 (3) Sentence 1 HGB [“Handelsgesetzbuch”: 

German Commercial Code], we declare that our audit has not 

led to any reservations relating to the legal compliance of the 

consolidated financial statements and of the consolidated 

management report. 

Basis for the opinions 
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements 

and of the consolidated management report in accordance with 

Sec. 317 HGB and in compliance with German Generally Accep-

ted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated by 

the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer [Institute of Public Auditors in 

Germany] (IDW). 0ur responsibilities under those requirements 

and principles are further described in the Auditor’s responsi-

bilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

and of the consolidated management report section of our 

auditor’s report. We are independent of the Group entities in 

accordance with the requirements of German commercial and 

professional law, and we have fulfilled our other German pro-

fessional responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions on the con-

solidated financial statements and on the consolidated manage-

ment report. 

Material uncertainty about the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern
We refer to the disclosures in the section “A. General Information“ 

in the notes to the consolidated financial statements and the 

section “Significant Risks“ in the consolidated management 

report, which has been combined with the management report 

of the Company, under the subheading Financial Risks, in which 

the executive directors state that there are financing risks in 

connection with the creditworthiness of M0B0TIX AG, and there-

fore of the Group, and the existing loan commitments. 0f the 

liabilities to banks of EUR 14.0m reported in the Group as of the 

reporting date, an amount of EUR 9.8m is due in less than one 

year. lf, in the future, the banks do not extend their credit lines, 

or only do so with lower amounts than those drawn, the majo-

rity shareholder Konica Minolta, lnc., Tokyo, Japan, has contrac-

tually agreed to take over financing until 30 June 2025 and has 

issued a qualified letter of subordination. The existing and 

already utilized credit lines of the majority shareholder Konica 

Minolta, lnc. were contractually extended beyond the calendar 

year 2024 until 30 June 2025 and a qualified letter of subordi-

nation was issued. In addition, the majority shareholder has 
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committed to provide another loan of EUR 7 .0m for a limited 

period until 30 June 2025 and has issued a qualified letter of 

subordination. lf there are major delays to planned revenue or 

further significant delays in incoming payments or if one or more 

of the assumptions used in the planning prove incorrect, further 

support will be required from the majority shareholder in the 

form of loans or other external financing sources, e.g., a capital 

increase based on the authorized capital of EUR 6.5m, in order 

to enable MOBOTIX AG, and therefore the Group, to continue as 

a going concern. This draws attention to the existence of a mate-

rial uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the ability of 

MOBOTIX AG, and therefore of the Group, to continue as a going 

concern and that represents a going concern risk pursuant to 

Sec. 322 (2) Sentence 3 HGB.

Our opinions are not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information
The Supervisory Board is responsible for the report of the Super-

visory Board. In all other respects, the executive directors are 

responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the other parts of the annual report which we expect 

to receive after we have issued our independent auditor’s report. 

This particularly applies to the Letter to the shareholders, the 

Report of the Supervisory Board and other sections of the annual 

report. 

Our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on 

the consolidated management report do not cover the other 

information, and consequently we do not express an opinion or 

any other form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in so doing, to consider whether the other 

information 

•	 is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 

statements, with the consolidated management report or 

our knowledge obtained in the audit, or 

•	 otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Responsibilities of the executive directors and the 
Supervisory Board for the consolidated financial 
statements and the consolidated management report
The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of 

the consolidated financial statements that comply, in all mate-

rial respects, with the requirements of German commercial law, 

and that the consolidated financial statements give a true and 

fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial 

performance of the Group in compliance with German legally 

required accounting principles. In addition, the executive direc-

tors are responsible for such internal control as they, in 

accordance with German legally required accounting principles, 

have determined necessary to enable the preparation of conso-

lidated financial statements that are free from material misstate-

ment, whether due to fraud (i.e., fraudulent financial reporting 

and misappropriation of assets) or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the executive 

directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to con-

tinue as a going concern. They also have the responsibility for 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. In 

addition, they are responsible for financial reporting based on 

the going concern basis of accounting, provided no actual or 

legal circumstances conflict therewith.

Furthermore, the executive directors are responsible for the pre-

paration of the consolidated management report that, as a 

whole, provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and 

is, in all material respects, consistent with the consolidated finan-

cial statements, complies with German legal requirements, and 

appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future 

development. In addition, the executive directors are responsible 

for such arrangements and measures (systems) as they have 

considered necessary to enable the preparation of a consolida-

ted management report that is in accordance with the applicable 

German legal requirements, and to be able to provide sufficient 

appropriate evidence for the assertions in the consolidated 

management report. 

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s 

financial reporting process for the preparation of the consoli-

dated financial statements and of the consolidated management 

report. 
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the conso-
lidated financial statements and of the consolida-
ted management 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and whe-

ther the consolidated management report as a whole provides 

an appropriate view of the Group’s position and, in all material 

respects, is consistent with the consolidated financial statements 

and the knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the 

German legal requirements and appropriately presents the 

opportunities and risks of future development, as weil as to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinions on the consolida-

ted financial statements and on the consolidated management 

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sec. 317 

HGB and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Stan-

dards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut 

der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW) will always detect a material mis-

statement. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial state-

ments and this consolidated management report.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•	 ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the consolidated financial statements and of the consoli-

dated management report, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresenta-

tions, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 

the audit of the consolidated financial statements and 

of arrangements and measures (systems) relevant to the 

audit of the consolidated management report in order 

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of these systems. 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used by the executive directors and the reasonableness 

of estimates made by the executive directors and related 

disclosures. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the executive direc-

tors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a mate-

rial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 

that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a mate-

rial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atten-

tion in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

the consolidated financial statements and in the conso-

lidated management report or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our respective opinions. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 

up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to be 

able to continue as a going concern. 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 

of the consolidated financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the consolidated finan-

cial statements present the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that the consolidated financial 

statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabi-

lities, financial position and financial performance of 

the Group in compliance with German legally required 

accounting principles. 
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•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 

the financial information of the entities or business acti-

vities within the Group to express opinions on the conso-

lidated financial statements and on the consolidated 

management report. We are responsible for the direc-

tion, supervision and performance of the Group audit. 

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinions. 

•	 Evaluate the consistency of the consolidated manage-

ment report with the consolidated financial statements, 

its conformity with [German] law, and the view of the 

Groups position it provides.

•	 Perform audit procedures on the prospective information 

presented by the executive directors in the consolidated 

management report. On the basis of sufficient approp-

riate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the signi-

ficant assumptions used by the executive directors as a 

basis for the prospective information, and evaluate the 

proper derivation of the prospective information from 

these assumptions. We do not express a separate opinion 

on the prospective information and on the assumptions 

used as a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk 

that future events will differ materially from the prospec-

tive information.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant defici-

encies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Saarbrücken, March 21, 2024   

EY GmbH & Co. KG, Auditing company

Dr. Zabel	 Krämer

Auditor	 Auditor
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APAC 	 Asia Pacific

CAGR 	 Compound annual growth rate

CCD image sensor 	 Charged coupled device; a light-sensitive hardware component

CIF 	 Common intermediate format, image compression format

CMOS image sensor 	 Complementary metal oxide semiconductor; a light-sensitive hardware component

Control center computer 	 Computer that makes it possible to process information transmitted from cameras from a central 

control center

CPU 	 Central processing unit

DACH 	 Germany, Austria, Switzerland

DVR 	 Digital video recorder

EBIT 	 Earnings before interest and taxes

EBITDA 	 Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization

EBITDA margin 	 (EBITDA/Revenue) x 100 (the higher the percentage, the greater the profitability)

EBIT margin 	 (EBIT/Revenue) x 100 (the higher the percentage, the greater the profitability)

Equity ratio 	 Total equity as of the reporting date divided by total assets multiplied by 100 (the higher the ratio,  

the lower the leverage)

Fixed dome 	 Camera without moving parts in a dome-shaped housing

FORXAI 	 Konica Minolta’s FORXAI video analytics technology combines intelligent sensors with learning 

based on algorithms (or artificial intelligence) and an IoT platform. MOBOTIX integrates FORXAI 

technology into its solutions.

Gross profit 	 Total operating output less material costs

HDTV 	 High-definition TV

Hemispheric 	 360° allround view

HiRes 	 High resolution

IP network 	 Data network based on the Internet protocol

IP standard 	 Standardized network protocol

IR 	 Infrared

JPEG format 	 A lossy format for online image data that reduces the file size by compressing the same or similar 

image content, among other things
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LAN 	 Local area network

LPR 	 License plate recognition

Megapixel 	 Image size with more than one million pixels

MPEG format 	 Video format for generating data streams with a smooth display of images, defined by the Motion 

Picture Experts Group

NAS 	 Network Attached Storage 

NDAA 	 National Defense Authorization Act

Novaira Insights 	 World market for video surveillance hardware and software, 2021 edition. Josh Woodhouse & Jon  

Cropley, 09/21/2021

ONVIF 	 Open Network Video Interface Forum

SD card 	 Secure Digital memory card; a digital storage device that, like USB sticks, for example,  

uses flash memory

TCO 	 Total costs of ownership

Total operating output 	 Revenue +/- changes in inventory + other own work capitalized

TCP/IP 	 Transmission Control Protocol/Internet Protocol

Video server 	 Central storage unit for video images or video streams

VoIP 	 Voice over Internet Protocol; standard for delivering voice communications over IP networks
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Disclaimer

This financial report contains statements and information from MOBOTIX AG that refer to future periods. These statements related to future 
periods can be identified by words such as ‘plan,’ ‘expect,’ ‘intend,’ ‘aim,’ ‘become,’ ‘estimate,’ ‘assume,’ ‘target’ or similar words. Such statements 
are made based on the current situation and latest expectations and may occasionally differ significantly – either on the upside or downside – from 
actual developments. Some of the factors that may give rise to uncertainties are changes in domestic or international macroeconomic conditions, 
changes in the underlying political situation, the introduction of new products or technologies by other companies, changes in investment 
behavior in MOBOTIX AG’s key markets, movements in exchange rates or interest rates, and the integration of acquired companies. MOBOTIX AG 
undertakes no obligation – over and above the existing legal requirements – to revise or update forward-looking statements. MOBOTIX AG assumes 
no obligation to correct or update any future-related statements other than existing statutory obligations.  

Contact
Klaus Kiener

CFO

Phone: +49 6302 9816-300

Fax: +49 6302 9816-190

E-Mail: cfo@mobotix.com

MOBOTIX AG

Investor Relations

Kaiserstraße

D-67722 Winnweiler-Langmeil

E-Mail: investor@mobotix.com 

Contact and Disclaimer
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MOBOTIX Contact
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